Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee

Date: THURSDAY, 21 SEPTEMBER 2023
Time: 9.00 am
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Tijs Broeke, Police Authority Board and  Deputy Christopher Hayward, Policy and
Policy and Resources Committee Resources Committee

(Chair) Deputy Shravan Joshi, Planning and
Ruby Sayed, Community and Children's Transportation Committee

Services Committee (Deputy Chair) Graham Packham, Planning and

Deputy Peter Dunphy, Port Health and  Transportation Committee

Environmental Services Committee Deputy James Thomson, Police

Mary Durcan, Port Health and Authority Board
Environmental Services Committee /
Health and Wellbeing Board*

Helen Fentimen, Community and
Children's Services Committee

James Tumbridge, Licensing Committee

Deputy John Fletcher, Licensing
Committee

Mary Durcan, Health and Wellbeing
Board*

Enquiries julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London
Corporation by following the below link:
https://www.youtube.com/@ CityofLondonCorporation/streams

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.



https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams

Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded
following the end of the meeting.

lan Thomas CBE
Town Clerk and Chief Executive



AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda

APOLOGIES

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 13" June 2023.
For Decision
(Pages 5 - 8)

REPORT OF THE CHAIR OF THE CITY OF LONDON SAFER CITY PARTNERSHIP

For Information
(Pages 9 - 12)

a) Appendix 1 - Safer City Partnership Terms of Reference (Pages 13 - 18)
b) Appendix 2 - Safer City Partnership Strategy 2022-25 (Pages 19 - 66)

c) Appendix 3 - Update from the Safer City Partnership Chair (Pages 67 - 68)
d) Appendix 4 - Anti-Social Behaviour Update (Pages 69 - 72)

e) Appendix 5 - Serious Violence Update (Pages 73 - 74)

f) Appendix 6 - Reducing Re-offending Update (Pages 75 - 76)

) Appendix 7 - Funding Application Process (Pages 77 - 84)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION — That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act.



Part 2 — Non-Public Agenda

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
BOARD

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH
THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE

EXCLUDED



Agenda Iltem 3

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 13 June 2023

Minutes of the meeting of the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee held at Committee
Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Tuesday, 13 June 2023 at 11.00 am

Present

Members:
Tijs Broeke (Chair)
Ruby Sayed (Deputy Chair)
Deputy Keith Bottomley
Mary Durcan
Helen Fentimen
Deputy John Fletcher
Deputy James Thomson

In attendance virtually:
Deputy Marianne Fredericks

Officers:
Richard Holt - Town Clerk’s Department
Richard Riley - Police Authority Director
Simon Cribbens - Community and Children’s Services
Department
Gavin Stedman - Port Health and Environmental Services
Department

APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Deputy Shravan Joshi, Deputy Peter Dunphy and
Deputy Marianne Fredericks.

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations received.

ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL

The Committee received the order of the Court of Common Council held at the
Guildhall of the City of London on Thursday 27th April 2023, which appointed the
Committee and approved its Terms of Reference.

RESOLVED- That the Court Order be noted.
ELECTION OF CHAIR
The Committee considered the report to elect a Chairman in accordance with Standing

Order No. 29.

The Committee received an Expression of Interest from Tijs Broeke to be elected as
Chair of the Committee.

Page 5



RESOLVED - That Tijs Broeke be elected as Chair of the Committee for the ensuing
year.

ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIR
The Committee considered the report to elect a Deputy Chair in accordance with
Standing Order No. 30.

The Committee received an Expression of Interest from Ruby Sayed to be elected as
uncontested Deputy Chair of the Committee.

RESOLVED- That Ruby Sayed be elected as Deputy Chair of the Committee for the
ensuing year.

SUGGESTED WAYS OF WORKING FOR THE CRIME & DISORDER SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk concerning the Safer City
Partnership’s suggested ways of working for the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny
Committee

The Deputy Chair suggested that the Officers arrange a training for the Committee to
ensure Members are fully aware and abreast of their duties in scrutinising and to help
clarify how Members are expected to discharge their statutory function. Officers
agreed that the requested training for the Committee would be arranged.

RESOLVED- The Board agreed the suggested ways of working or to set out — within
the bounds of the formal terms of reference and agreed activities.

REFOCUSING PRIORITIES FOR THE SAFER CITY PARTNERSHIP
The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk concerning refocussing its
priorities from the seven-point agenda set out in its strategy last year.

The Chair requested that the terms of reference and membership list of the Safer City
Partnership be circulated to the Committee.

Following a Member’s request, Officers agreed to investigate how other scrutinising
teams operate their meetings and notify the Committee of the range of practices used
in managing crime to avoid duplication of efforts between the Committee and the Safer
City Partnership.

The Committee discussed the importance of revisiting the timing between the Safer
City Partnership Board and the Crime and Disorder Committee meetings to ensure the
Committee is provided with minutes from the Board meetings prior to each Committee
meeting. In addition, Members requested that the Chair and/or the Deputy Chair of the
Safer City Partnership to attend Committee meetings going forward to inform of the
Board’s activities.

Following the Chair’s query, it was agreed that the Committee be provided with a copy

of the strategic assessment document regarding crime and disorder in the city and the
informed of any updates made to the strategic assessment document going forward.

Page 6



RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD
There were no questions.

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT
There was no urgent business.

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
MOTION - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act.

11. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
BOARD
There were no non-public questions.

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH
THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE
EXCLUDED
There were no non-public items of urgent business.

The meeting ended at 11:44

Chair

Contact Officer: Richard Holt
Richard.Holt@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

Committee(s):Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee Dated:
21/09/2023

Subject: Report of the Chair of the City of London Safer | Public
City Partnership

Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? Safe

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate | #1 People are Safe and feel

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N
capital spending?

If so, how much?

What is the source of Funding?

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the
Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: Commander Umer Khan For Information

Report author: Richard Riley, Director City of London
Police Authority

Summary

This report provides some context to, and summarises the discussion at, the latest
meeting of the City of London Safer City Partnership (SCP) Strategy Board on 4
September. It covers the three areas agreed by the SCP for priority focus in
2023/24: anti-social behaviour, serious violence, and reducing re-offending. It also
records the approach being taken by the SCP to the allocation of funds derived from
Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) recoveries.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to:

¢ Note the report.

Main Report

Background

1. The Safer City Partnership (SCP) operates as the City of London’s statutory
Community Safety Partnership. The requirement to have such a partnership
is set out in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and subsequent legislation and
regulations. Responsible Authorities are required to work together to address
community safety issues in a relevant local authority area. For the City of
London, the Responsible Authorities are the City of London Corporation, the
Commissioner of the City of London Police, the NHS North East London
Integrated Care Board (ICB), the London Fire Commissioner and London
Probation Service. The Terms of Reference for the SCP are set out in
Appendix 1.

Page 9



SCP Evolution

2. The SCP has evolved over time, reflecting the changing nature of crime and
community safety in the City, changes to partners’ operational activities and
priorities, and the evolution of the City itself.

3. Over the past twelve months, the SCP has developed and published a new
overall strategy (copy at Appendix 2), established new governance
arrangements to oversee delivery of that strategy, and put in place
transparent procedures for assessing bids for funding to support partnership
activity. At its June 2023 meeting, the SCP Strategy Board decided to narrow
the primary focus of the SCP for 2023/24 to three priority areas: anti-social
behaviour, serious violence, and reducing re-offending. An overall update
from the SCP Chair, Commander Umer Khan, is at Appendix 3.

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee role

4. As set out in the papers presented to the meeting of the Crime and Disorder
Scrutiny Committee on 13 June 2023, the essential purpose of the Committee
is to scrutinise the work of the City of London SCP. It should operate as a
check on whether the SCP is delivering what it said it would do. At the
Committee meeting on 13 June, Members expressed a desire to scrutinise
discussions and decisions made at the SCP Strategy Board which precedes
each Committee meeting. The most recent such Board took place on 4
September.

SCP Strategy Board meeting on 4 September 2023

5. The discussion at the SCP Strategy Board on 4 September can be
summarised as follows:

Crime trends

6. The Board received a presentation on recent crime and anti-social behaviour
trends based on City Police data. The intention is, in future, for data from
other partners to be brought together with police data to produce a fuller
picture of community safety issues and trends to better inform SCP activity,
particularly in terms of crime prevention.

Anti-social behaviour (ASB)

7. The Board discussed an update from the SCP’s anti-social behaviour sub-
group, copy at Appendix 4. The Board noted the range of tactical activity
being undertaken to tackle ASB, backed up by work on new Corporation ASB
policy and Standard Operating Procedure documents, and supported by a bid
to the Home Office’s Safer Streets Fund.

Page 10



Serious Violence

8. The focus of the work of the serious violence sub-group (outlined at Appendix
5) is on the production, by January 2024, and implementation of a new
serious violence strategy. The Board noted that consultants (Crest Advisory)
had been enlisted to produce an analysis of the City’s risk factors,
characteristics and profile of serious violence offences. This will form the
basis of a more comprehensive strategic needs analysis. The Sub-group
update also set out the work carried out to fully understand the range of
tactical work already in hand to tackle serious violence, and on the work to
shape the forthcoming strategy.

Reducing re-offending

9. The reducing reoffending sub-group has been slower in getting into its stride
in comparison with those dealing with ASB and serious violence. The update
given to the Board is at Appendix 6. The Board was informed that work was
now in hand to clarify the make-up of the City and its needs in terms of
reducing reoffending.

Safequarding

10.In addition to the three priority areas (above), the Board received an update
on a range of child safeguarding issues, including the publication of an update
report from the City & Hackney Safeguarding Children Partnership (CHSCP)
on the Child Q case. This will be considered by a future meeting of the
Professional Standards and Integrity Committee of the Police Authority Board.

Funding

11.The SCP holds an allocation of funds - derived from recovered Proceeds of
Crime Act - it can disperse to support projects furthering the aims and
objectives of the Partnership and its strategy. To ensure a fair, transparent
and consistent approach, the SCP has developed an agreed criteria and
process for applicants. Details are attached at Appendix 7. An initial
‘expression of interest’ is reviewed by the relevant subgroup of the SCP — and
progress for full assessment if supported. External partners — those not one of
the ‘responsible authorities’ of the SCP — submit an application to the City
Corporation’s Central Grants Unit to undertake due diligence and a formal
assessment. The recommendations of this assessment are reviewed by the
SCP for decision.

12.Three current bids are subject to assessment by the Central Grants Unit.
Their assessment was delayed due to summer leave and therefore the SCP
decided to receive and review the assessments as an urgent item outside of
the cycle of SCP meetings. This will enable timely mobilisation of the projects
(assuming support) ahead of the busier night time economy activity over the
coming months.

Page 11



13. A number of pipeline bids are in development. An additional SCP meeting in

October will review these in the round to agree a strategic programme that
best fits, and will impact upon, the priorities of the Partnership.

Future activity

14.The SCP Strategy Board will continue to oversee and drive work in the priority

area sub groups and agree (as above) funding for specific partnership
projects. It will become more forward-looking, data-driven and intelligence-
led.

15.There is a requirement, under the Crime and Disorder Act, for the SCP to

carry out an annual review of data concerning crime, disorder and community
safety (usually collected together in a strategic assessment document). The
last such assessment was completed in May 2022. Work is underway on a
new assessment. The aim is for this to be presented to the SCP Strategy
Board for sign off by the end of the year, and to the Crime and Disorder
Scrutiny Committee in early 2024.

Appendices
e Appendix 1 — Safer City Partnership Terms of Reference
e Appendix 2 — Safer City Partnership Strategy 2022 — 25
e Appendix 3 — Update from the SCP Chair
e Appendix 4 — ASB update
e Appendix 5 — Serious Violence update
e Appendix 6 — Reducing Re-offending update
e Appendix 7 — Funding application process

Richard Riley
Director, City of London Police Authority

richard.riley@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 12


mailto:richard.riley@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 4a

M PARTNERSHIP

- safercity

Safer City Partnership and Safer City Partnership Strategy Board

Terms of Reference 2022 -2023

Background

1. The Safer City Partnership (SCP) brings together statutory agencies, known as
the Responsible Authorities that have a role in keeping the Square Mile safe.
Our vision is that the Square Mile is a safe place for people to live, learn, work
and visit.

2. The SCP is a statutory community safety partnership required by the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 and subsequent legislation and regulations.* This means the
Responsible Authorities must comply with statutory duties and work together to
address community safety issues in the Square Mile.

3. The Responsible Authorities are those persons referred to in section 5(1) of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998. For the SCP these are the City of London
Corporation, the Commissioner of the City of London Police, the NHS North
East London Integrated Care Board (ICB), the London Fire Commissioner and
London Probation Service.

Safer City Partnership — Terms of Reference

The SCP Responsible Authorities are accountable for the statutory responsibilities outlined
below:

a) Formulating and implementing strategies (in accordance with the relevant regulations)
for the reduction of crime and disorder in the area; combatting the misuse of drugs,
alcohol and other substances in the area; the reduction of re-offending in the area;
preventing people from becoming involved in serious violence in the area; and
reducing instances of serious violence in the area;

b) Appointing a strategy group which shall consist of two or more persons appointed by
one or more of the Responsible Authorities;

c¢) Complying with the protocol prepared by the strategy group for the sharing of
information between Responsible Authorities and nominating a person within that
authority to facilitate the sharing of information under the protocol;

d) Having regard to any guidance given by the Secretary of State;

1 Police and Justice Act 2006, Policing and Crime Act 2009, Crime and Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy) Regulations
2007

Page 13



SCP Strategy Board -Terms of Reference

4. The SCP Strategy Board is appointed by the Responsible Authorities, they are

senior_officers in _their organisations. The Responsible Authorities have
agreed that at least three Strateqy Group partners will be appointed and that
three Strategy Board partners must be present at SCP Strategy Board meetings
for it to be quorate.

The Strategy Board is responsible for:

Vi.
Vil.

preparing strategic assessments for the City of London area on behalf of the
Responsible Authorities;

preparing and implementing a partnership plan for the City of London area on
behalf of the Responsible Authorities;

making arrangements for the sharing of information between Responsible
Authorities and preparing a protocol setting out those arrangements;

making arrangements governing the review of the expenditure of partnership
monies and for assessing the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of such
expenditure;

engaging with the local community for the purposes of preparing and
implementing the strategic assessment and partnership plan;

publishing a summary of the partnership plan;

inviting persons who represent Co-operating Persons and Participating
Persons? and bodies and such other persons to attend Strategy Board
Meetings;

acting at all times in accordance with the requirements of the Crime and Disorder (Formulation
and Implementation of Strategy) Regulations 2007 (as amended).

Chair
5.

6.

7.

The responsible authorities appoints Co-operating Persons and Participating
Persons to the Strategy Board as per paragraph 4b, these persons shall be
called ‘partners’.

The Chair and Deputy Chair of the SCP Strategy Board will each be a
representative of one of the Responsible Authorities. The length of term of the
Chair is expected to be three years.

The Strategy Board partners will agree on a Chair at the commencement of
each three-year strategy cycle. Should the Chair become vacant, chairing will
pass to the Deputy Chair, and partners will agree a process to hominate a
replacement. Should Strategy Board partners suggest that a change in Chair is
necessary, a vote of partners should take place. If a majority is achieved, the
Chair will step down and the Deputy Chair will arrange a process for the election
of a new Chair.

2 Co-operating Persons and Participating Persons as defined under section 5(2) and 5(3) of the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998

Page 14



Membership and Collaboration

8. The SCP Strategy Board shall consist of two or more persons appointed by at
least one of the Responsible Authorities (called “Strategy Board partners"). The
Responsible Authorities should pay attention to the value these appointees can
bring to a multi-agency strategy group that is working to address community
safety issues in the City.

9. The Strategy Board may invite persons who represent Co-operating Persons
and Participating Persons and bodies and such other persons to attend
Strategy Board Meetings (called “Strategy Group invitees”), including
representatives from the following:

e City of London Corporation Public Protection

e City of London Corporation City Operations

e City of London Corporation Police Authority

e City of London Corporation Community and children Services
e City and Hackney Public Health

e British Transport Police

e Transport for London

e City of London Crime Prevention Association

e The Guinness Partnership

e The City of London Corporation — Elected member residents representative
e The City of London Corporation — Elected member business representative
e London Ambulance Service

e Victim Support representative

Page 15



Voting and Decisions

10.Those persons appointed by the Responsible Authorities under regulation 3(2)

of the Crime and Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy)
Regulations 2007, ie the Strategy Board partners, have an exclusive remit when
it comes to voting on matters for decisions. Decisions must be taken in a
democratic manner and all Strategy Board partners will be equal — one vote
for each Strategy Board partner. As a minimum, three Strategy Board partners
must be present at SCP Strategy Board meetings for it to be quorate. The
Strategy Board invitees will not be able to vote in matters or count toward the
quorum.

Governance and Scrutiny

11.SCP Strategy Board meetings will be held at least quarterly, with at least one

meeting being public. These meetings will provide an opportunity for the
Strategy Group to update attendees on their actions and to highlight any risks
or opportunities to support effective joint working. Updates should be provided
in the form of written documentation such as data or reports, where possible,
with a verbal update in the meeting to enable discussion and review.

12.The SCP Strategy Board public meeting will be used to present the annual

Strategic Assessment refresh, review of the current plan and update the public
on the implementation of the plan.

13.The SCP Strategy Board will report to the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny

Committee. This Committee will hold the Responsible Authorities to account on
their performance of their crime and disorder functions in the City. The Chair of
the Strategy Board will submit an annual report outlining and evaluating
progress on the Partnership Community Safety Plan. It is noted that the Crime
and Disorder Scrutiny Committee may require the Responsible Authorities and
the Co-operating Persons to provide it with certain information3.

SCP Strategy Board meetings

14.The SCP Strategy Board meetings will use a standard agenda template:

Minutes of the previous meeting

Update on risk and threat/performance management framework

Oversight of the partnership plan and exception reporting

Focus on a priority — one priority per meeting

Emerging issues (for example, new legislation, areas of interest for the SCP, and so
on)

Date of next meeting

3 In accordance with regulation 5 of the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 (as

amended)

Page 16



15. A Performance Management Framework will hold Responsible Authorities and
the strategy group to account on performance, and allow the Board to review
progress against measurable objectives which are outlined in the strategy. The
partnership plan should also be reviewed at each meeting, with updates and a
status indicator (RAG rating) provided by the strategy group ahead of the
meeting. The Board should focus on actions rated ‘Red’ and ‘Amber’ to
understand the reasons for the rating, identify opportunities to support, and
agree mitigations where appropriate.

16.A focus on one priority area at each meeting will allow for a ‘deep dive’
discussion between partners while holding the relevant Authority or partner to
account on their delivery.

Safer City Partnership Priorities

17.The Safer City Partnership Strategic Assessment provides an evidence base
to determine recommended priorities for the SCP. Local communities are also
consulted to understand their concerns. The partnership plan sets out a
strategy for meeting those priorities and how that strategy should be
implemented by the SCP.

Key City of London Corporation Committee linkages

18.The SCP is represented on relevant key committees including the Police
Authority Board (by the Chairman and officers), Health and Wellbeing Board
(by officer), Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Sub-Committee (by officer),
City and Hackney Safeguarding Board and Partnership (by officer).

Strategy delivery groups and Other Multi-Agency Collaboration

19.The delivery of the strategies will be carried out at a local level by the relevant
Responsible Authorities’ and Co-operating or Participating Persons’ Strategy
delivery groups for each one of the priority areas. These group will report to the
SCP Strategy group on their progress.

20.The SCP also collaborates with other multi-agency partnerships including: The
Serious and Organised Crime Board; Domestic Abuse Multi-Agency Risk
Assessment Conference (MARAC), City Community MARAC (CCM), Domestic
Abuse and Sexual Violence Forum, and the Local Licensing Partnership (LLP).
In addition, there are task and finish groups, such as the Drugs Working Group
and the Anti-Social Behaviour Strategic Task and Finish Group, involved in this
work.

Review

21.These Terms of Reference are to be reviewed in 12 months.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



&

e -
cITY
LONDON

CITY OF LONDON SAFER CITY PARTNERSHIP
COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY

2022-25

W PARTNERSHIP

Page 19 ‘L safercity

o



Contents

1 INTRODUCTION 1
2 UNDERSTANDING THE CITY 2
3 CRIME AND DISORDER IN THE CITY 3
4 PUBLIC CONCERNS 4
5 STATUTORY PRIORITIES 4
6 DISCRETIONARY PRIORITIES 2
7 HOW WILL WE DELIVER THIS? 5

8 REDUCING NEIGHBOURHOOD CRIME AND ASB, INCLUDING IN THE NIGHT-TIME
ECONOMY 7

9 COMBATTING CRIME AND ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR CAUSED BY THE MISUSE OF
DRUGS, ALCOHOL AND OTHER SUBSTANCES IN THE AREA. 12

10 SAFEGUARDING AND SUPPORTING HIGH RISK AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN AND

ADULTS FROM HARM 21
11 VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS 27
12 SERIOUS VIOLENCE 35
13 TACKLING SERIOUS ACTS OF DISCRIMINATION INCLUDING HATE CRIME 40
14 REDUCING REOFFENDING TO PROTECT OUR COMMUNITIES 43

Page 20



1. INTRODUCTION

« 1.1 The Safer City Partnership (SCP) operates as the City of London’s statutory Community
Safety Partnership (CSP). The partnership appoints the SCP Strategic Board which consists of
statutory and voluntary organisations who work together to reduce crime and anti-social
behaviour. The partnership is responsible for the delivery of a wide variety of strategies and
plans with the overall aim of improving the safety of the community in the City of London. As
part of this process a Community Safety Strategy is published every three years which
focuses on an identified set of priorities. The priorities are intelligence led based upon
analysis from the partnership’s strategic assessment1 and results from public consultations.

o 1.2 The partnership is made up of core members as outlined in the Crime and Disorder Act

1998, namely:

CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION (CITY CORPORATION)

CITY OF LONDON POLICE

LONDON FIRE BRIGADE

PROBATION CITY AND HACKNEY

CITY & HACKNEY INTEGRATED CARE BOARD

« 1.3 Whilst other non-statutory members may be invited (for example representatives of the
third sector or community groups), the statutory partners are jointly responsible by law for
agreeing a strategy to reduce crime and disorder in the City of London. No single agency has
lead responsibility for this and all partners come together to share information and jointly
plan effective interventions to reduce crime and disorder in the City of London. To achieve
this aim partners have established a strategy group to oversee delivery and will hold
members to account with the support of a performance dashboard overseeing the action
plans of this strategy.

« 1.4 The City of London is the world’s leading international financial and business centre. It
has the lowest levels of crime and disorder in London, but a burgeoning night-time economy
and the return to normality post-pandemic presents emerging challenges for partners. This
strategy provides an outline to identify these issues and respond to them in partnership,
focusing on reducing both volume of crime and harm.

« 1.5 Seven key areas have been identified which the partnership will focus on over the next

three years:

REDUCING NEIGHBOURHOOD CRIME AND TACKLING SUBSTANCE MISUSE LINKED
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR (ASB), INCLUDING TO CRIME AND DISORDER
IN THE NIGHT-TIME ECONOMY

SAFEGUARDING AND SUPPORTING HIGH VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS,
RISK AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN AND INCLUDING GENDERED VIOLENCE
ADULTS FROM HARM

j SERIOUS VIOLENCE HATE CRIME

7 REDUCING REOFFENDING




e 1.6 Since 1998 the SCP has worked to reduce crime and the fear of crime for residents,
visitors, students and workers across the City. After a long period of decline, crime levels
have been rising since 2016, although ASB reports have declined over that period.

« 1.7 As a partnership, we are facing a number of challenges including reduced resources and
a number of emerging issues and additional responsibilities impacting our communities. The
continued support of all partners is necessary to ensure that the SCP is in the best place to
deal with these issues and continue to protect residents, students, workers and visitors. This
plan offers a change in focus and will look more in-depth at a number of cross cutting themes
involving a range of partners and seeks to build on the positive work completed to date, as
well as to address emerging issues and challenges. It is proposed that each priority develops
an action plan which is updated on a quarterly basis with headline updates reported back to
the SCP. An annual review of the actions will be carried out to ensure that they remain fit for
purpose.

e 1.8 Locally there remains the need to maintain a strong understanding of issues within the
City. We will collectively work to maintain feelings of safety among those who live, study in,
work and visit the City. Our focus is working efficiently as a partnership to focus on those
deemed most at risk, to work more effectively in changing times, and to reduce demand for
agency response across the key partners.

e 1.9 The SCP will continue to monitor trends and national priorities to reduce crime and anti-
social behaviour.

« 1.10 This strategy covers a three-year period (2022-25) but will be reviewed annually to
address any emerging issues. The strategy complements the City of London Policing Plan and
seeks to bring together the crime and disorder elements from related strategies.

« 1.11 By delivering the objectives and activities outlined within this strategy, we will maintain

the City of London as a safe place to live, study, work and visit.

2. Understanding the City

« 2.1 The City- also known as the “Square Mile” - is the historical and geographic heart of the
capital. This unique area is bordered by seven other London boroughs and the River Thames.
The City of London is a rapidly changing and growing place. It is a City where ancient
traditions are observed yet sit comfortably alongside modern business practices.

« 2.2 The City of London is unlike most local authority areas, with a resident population much
smaller than most (the average borough population in London is 290,000, and the population
of the City is approximately 8,600) but as the financial and commercial heart of the UK the
Square Mile welcomed 513,000 workers into the City each day prior to the pandemic. The
changes in workforce patterns since then need to be studied and the impact considered.




2.3 The City has an established and expanding Night-Time Economy, with more people
than ever visiting bars, clubs and restaurants after work and at weekends. A major
tourist destination and cultural hub, it is an exciting place to live, study, work and visit.
The City’s new “Destination City” strategy seeks to improve the visitor experience and
leisure offer, focusing on tourism, events, public realm improvements and the opening

of the Elizabeth Line, bringing 1.5m people to within a 45-minute commute of the

Square mile.
2.4 These circumstances mean that the crime and disorder situation in the Square Mile is

truly unique in the UK. The reimagining of the City as a tourist and night-time
destination will place a new set of challenges in an area which has long had the lowest
crime rates in London. The challenge to the SCP is to maintain this situation, keeping
people safe while supporting the economic and social development of the Square

Mile.
3 Crime and Disorder in the City

3.1 Whilst the City of London is the safest local authority area in London, overall recorded
crime trends are upwards since 2016.

2016-2022 Total Crime

3000
2500
2000
1500
1000

500

Q102030401 020304010203 04010203 040102030401 0203042
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

3.2 Theincrease in crime is largely driven by Theft offences. 39.5% of crimes reported in
the City in 2019 were theft offences, with a further 20% of crime made up of other

Page 23



acquisitive crime offences.

3.3 ASB makes up 9.4% of reports to police, but combined with reports to the

Environmental Services department of the City Corporation is a significant issue
impacting on reputation and community well-being.

3.4 Violent Crime makes up 14.2% of reports to the police, and is much more harmful

than theft offences. Violent Crime in the City is largely a combination of assaults linked
to the night-time economy and domestic or gender-based offences.

4 Summary of Public Consultation

4.1 The SCP has an obligation to consult the public on the setting of priorities for this
strategy. A consultation in May/June 2022 of 202 people who lived or worked in the
City delivered the following results:

% of respondents choosing as a priority

50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
s I I I
; ]
@ A & D e e oA D R D e 2 -
\V‘:} Lg'é}z} &7 \v\;’ \‘?'QL '3(& o‘:‘\b QQQ(\Q*%Q ﬁ(\é \"’b Q;}" q,'bl\\b%\?'& @\o'aﬂig@{\% @Q‘?
S RS U S S AR - A
;,]ol« -\6‘& <& 6‘@9 \}(b\a\ e,b‘a _(\‘} e},_;o \?‘b i\)% {?q\ @ (;;@ Q\.(\\L
™ & F & P T & o S
o N G & i =4 X
= & N @
< o l?,é‘
W

4.2 Respondents were invited to choose their top three crime and disorder priorities from
a provided list. The most popular options were Social Anti-Social Behaviour [ASB] (that
is, nuisance behaviour which affects the lives of others but is not deliberately targeted

at an individual) 45%; Night-time safety 41%, and Terrorism 34%.

4.3 For comparison, the most common crime types in the Square Mile in 2021 were:

VIOLENCE &
ASSAULT

16.3%

4.4 The public consultation was used as an evidence base alongside the strategic

assessment to inform the selection of priorities; the partnership ensured that “social

ASB” and “Night time safety” were incorporated in the “Reducing neighbourhood
crime and ASB, including in the night-time economy” priority and the “Vulnerability”
priority focuses on both “night time safety” and “terrorism”.

Page 24



5. Statutory Priorities

5.1 The partnership’s strategic priorities are mostly evidence and public consultation
based, but there are certain priorities which must be included by law2. These include:
eReducing Reoffending

eTackling substance misuse linked to crime and disorder

5.2 In May 2022 Parliament passed the Policing, Crime and Courts Act 2022 which placed

an obligation on Community Safety Partnerships to deliver a strategy to reduce serious
violence. This is expected to be enacted in 2023.

5.3 This strategy will incorporate the SCP’s statutory responsibilities alongside its

discretionary priorities.

6. Strategic Priorities

6.1 Inview of the public consultation and data obtained through a partnership strategic
assessment, the CSP have agreed the following priorities to address the crime and
disorder issues in the City.

eNeighbourhood Crime and anti-social behaviour including those linked to the
night-time economy

eSafeguarding and supporting high risk and vulnerable children and adults from
harm

eHate Crime

6.2 The successful delivery of the CSP priorities will help us deliver our mission statement:
“To make the Square Mile a safe place for people to live, learn, work or visit.”
7. How will we deliver this?

7.1 The SCP (SCP) has the responsibility to deliver the priorities that are set out within this
plan. They are also responsible for delivering the strategies that flow from this plan,
including the Serious Violence Strategy, the ASB Strategy and Violence Against

Women and Girls (VAWG) Strategy.

7.2 This requires partner organisations to work together to share skills, knowledge, and

resources in order to effectively deliver a service that achieves our ambitions and

makes the Square Mile a safer place to live in, work in, and visit.

2 Crime and Disorder Act 1998



7.3 The SCP has established a governance structure to drive the operational delivery:

Crime and
Disorder
Scrutiny

Strategy Group
] |
ASB, NTE and VAWG Delivery Hate Crime Vulnerability Serious Violence
I emhbourhoods Group Group Group

t i

Legend

Colour code ' Group type

Strategic group

Priority oversight strand

Multi-agency delivery mechanism




WE HAVE ADOPTED A COMMON STRATEGIC APPROACH FOR
EACH PRIORITY BASED AROUND A FIVE-COLUMN APPROACH

INFORM - TO ENSURE THAT OUR COMMUNITIES UNDERSTAND THE ISSUE
AND KNOW HOW TO ACCESS SUPPORT WHERE REQUIRED

IDENTIFY — TO UNDERSTAND WHO THOSE AT RISK OF OFFENDING IN OUR AREA ARE;
TO UNDERSTAND WHO IS OR IS LIKELY TO BECOME A VICTIM; AND UNDERSTAND
THOSE LOCATIONS MOST LIKELY TO PLAY HOST TO THE ISSUE.

PREVENT - TO PREVENT THOSE WE HAVE IDENTIFIED AS BEING AT RISK FROM
BEING AT RISK OF OR EXPERIENCING THE ISSUE, OR TO COMMITTING AN OFFENCE,
OR FOR A LOCATION TO HOST AN OFFENCE.

PROTECT & SUPPORT - TO SAFEGUARD AND SUPPORT ALL THOSE
IDENTIFIED AS BEING AT RISK

PURSUE & PROSECUTE - TO TAKE ENFORCEMENT ACTION AGAINST
PERPETRATORS AS APPROPRIATE.

o 7.5 Through the delivery of the strategy we will seek to develop the partnership and
have agreed a number of cross-cutting strategic objectives, including:

 Closing data gaps and improving information sharing across partners to help us better
understand hotspots, drivers of crime and disorder and can identify vulnerability / at
risk individuals

» Improve analysis of victim and offender profiles in the City across priority areas

« Develop a set of problem profiles to help us be efficient in our tackling of crime and
disorder issues

» Strengthen collaboration and accountability across the partnership through joined up
community engagement on priority issues

» Ensure the built environment is designed to prevent crime - CCTV, street lighting, safe
spaces

» Maximise opportunities to secure grant and external funding

8. Reducing neighbourhood crime and ASB, including in the night-time economy

Why is this a priority?

« It is important that residents, students, workers and visitors to the City should feel safe
and be free from fear of victimisation.

o To support this, we will focus efforts on reducing anti-social behaviour and
neighbourhood crime3, with a focus on maintaining a safe night time economy in the
City.

 We will seek to focus on issues identified through data analysis, reported issues,
community concerns and issues raised by effective partnership engagement. This will
help us develop localised commitments to tackle the problems residents are most
concerned about in partnership - for example, antisocial street drinking, aggressive
begging, anti-social cycling, bicycle theft and other acquisitive crime offences (in
particular around small portable goods such as mobile phones).

q\leighbourhood crime is defined by the Home Office as “domestic burglary, vehicle related crime, theft from
the person and robbery”

10
Page 27



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

e Reducing ASB is pivotal in maintaining a safer, cleaner City of London. The impact
of ASB can be devastating to residents, businesses and visitors. For victims and the
wider community, it can become a destructive, cumulative issue leading to a poor
quality of life. It often overlaps with more serious crime, and this can contribute to
communities feeling unsafe where they live and work.

ASB is a conduct that:

« has caused, or is likely to cause, harassment, alarm or distress to one or more
persons not of the same household

« is capable of causing nuisance or annoyance to a person in relation to that
person's occupation of residential premises

« is capable of causing housing-related nuisance or annoyance to any person”

Given the broad definition, we recognise people will have difference thresholds and
tolerances for anti-social behaviour. All agencies will take reports of anti-social
behaviour seriously. Some of these examples can also be criminal offences, and when
that is the case, we maintain a strong partnership approach to deal with those causing

the problems.

We also know that often those responsible for ASB are often vulnerable themselves.
We recognise that ASB-related behaviours can be symptomatic of other issues which
require support and care. We are committed to working in partnership to safeguard,
support and protect vulnerable residents and provide meaningful opportunities for

behaviour change.

We know that ASB is a concern for people visiting or living in the Square Mile. Of
those who responded to our survey, 37% of residents reported that anti-social
behaviour was a concern; this is the third highest concern noted. Whilst 96% of those

surveyed felt safe in the City in the day, this drops to 71% at night.

There is an overlap between hotspots for violent crime and hotspots for anti-social
behaviour in the borough. Whilst the link is not necessarily causal, there are benefits
in aligning approaches to tackling both. Addressing anti-social behaviour in the Square

Mile is a complex matter that requires the attention of many different agencies.




Junkyard Golf Club | 2 i
Krary Golf Shoreditch

es Dickens Museum

i Smithfield Market

um of London @

Lang, £ 24

itechdoel Galler

Paul's Cathedral 23051 Mary Axe ;
o (The G"Fl-&fl'}@
Fleet St - )
101 Haflse 12 oF Sky Garden
oM

¢ Hational Theatre

o

w3l = vy e - e
ASB hotspots in the Square Mile

8.6 With the development of the Culture Mile and the “Destination City” strategy, the
City’s increasing night time economy brings a range of benefits and associated issues
such as noise and other ASB, alcohol-related violent crime, theft, sexual offences and
issues around the supply of drugs. A firm strategy to reduce these risks will be vital to

support the safe growth of the City as a night-time destination.

8.7 Key issues include:

eDrug and Alcohol related antisocial behaviour and crime
eRowdy and inconsiderate behaviour

eSexual violence4

oStreet drinking and begging

8.8 Our aims and strategic intentions

« Continuously deliver a victim-focused response to ASB
« Address the full spectrum of ASB, from littering and graffiti to alcohol and drug-related

ASB
» Deliver our licensing objectives as outlined in the City of London Licensing Policy,

namely:
» the prevention of crime and disorder
» public safety
« the prevention of public nuisance
» the protection of children from harm

Sexual harassment, violence, and gender-based crimes will be managed through the complementary
Violence Against Women and Girls strategy, and details of our planned activity in that space can be found
there.




« Ensure the City's Night-Time Economy is a safe, thriving, and prosperous
venue

« Safeguard vulnerable victims and perpetrators of ASB, working in partnership
with the Safeguarding Adults Board and Safeguarding Children’s Partnership

« Improve our understanding of ASB to deliver a more informed approach to
tackling the underlying drivers of demand

How will we achieve this?
8.9 We have agreed five objectives to deliver this priority:
Inform

8.10 We will work with partners to undertake communications campaigns with regard to

the night-time economy, focusing on issues such as safer drinking, sexual and gender-
based violence, and nuisance behaviour.

8.11 We will use communications campaigns to promote messaging around steps people
can take to reduce the likelihood of being victims of acquisitive crime.
8.12 Responsible partner members will deliver a communications campaign which will seek

to reassure residents regarding issues around fear of crime. This will be combined with
opportunities to advertise ASB services to help residents access support when
required. A focus on countering negative messaging around anti-social behaviour will
also be undertaken by relevant partners, in order to improve perceptions around
safety in our communities.

Identify
8.13 Responsible partner members will also work with partners to identify:

eHotspot locations for night-time economy issues, acquisitive crime, and ASB

eProfiles of likely victims and offenders
ePremises of concern

eAn understanding of the time of incidents
eCommunity priorities to address

8.14 The partnership will use this information to inform operational interventions and

activities. We will take a problem-oriented approach using analysis to inform
interventions. This will include the development of local multi-agency tasking groups.
These groups will listen to issues raised by each community and seek to address them,
working with the communities and being transparent and accountable on progress.
We will work to continually improve our ASB reporting systems and share information
to identify repeat locations and vulnerability.




Prevention

8.15 Responsible partners will seek to prevent acquisitive crime and ASB by strengthening
communities and the environment to make them more resilient:

Ensuring a strong CCTV service is in place and is visible to residents

Continue the Work with licensed premises to help them manage crime and ASB
more effectively and reduce the opportunities

We aim to continue with our intelligence led area based approach using analytical
products and reports

Protect and Support

8.16 When ASB does occur, partners will act quickly and appropriately to minimise the
impact through multi-agency working and utilising a range of powers available to
partnership members such as:

Rapid communication with victims and perpetrators (where known)

Warning letters

Acceptable Behaviour Contracts
Community Protection Warning
Premise Closure Notices

8.17 Being either a victim or perpetrator of ASB can suggest that someone is vulnerable
and in need of support. We will seek to:
« Signpost access to Drug and Alcohol Support services including:

1.Introduction to Change

2.Alcohol Resolution Clinic

3.Managing Alcohol Programme

4.Recovery Skills

5.Acceptance and Commitment Therapy

» Report Rough Sleepers to the Homelessness Service

» Provide effective support to ASB victims in a neighbourhood setting

« Make referrals to the Community Mental Health team as appropriate

o We will provide access to the Community Trigger process for those who are
repeat victims of ASB

Pursue and Prosecute

8.18 Enforcement is a last resort but will sometimes be necessary in order to effectively
manage a problem. Where problems are ongoing and consistent we will make robust
use of crime and ASB enforcement powers.

8.19 We will seek to identify and bring to justice perpetrators of violence and in particular

sexual violence.




9. Combatting crime and anti-social behaviour caused by the misuse of drugs,

alcohol and other substances in the area.

Why is this a priority?
Community Priorities

9.1 24% of those surveyed in the City said that people using or dealing drugs was a
concern for them. This was the third top-rated concern.

Public Health priorities

9.2 The Director of Public Health for City and Hackney published a report into substance
misuse in the City of London and Hackney in 2019-2020 which describes the need,
harms and local responses to substance misuse. The data in this section is drawn

directly from this report.

9.3 Itis challenging to estimate how many people use substances within a local area. This

is partly due to the hidden nature of substance misuse, possibly linked to the legal
status of many substances, or potential feelings of shame or embarrassment. Many
people also underestimate the risks associated with their lifestyle choices; for
example, underestimating their alcohol consumption by as much as 40%, and how
risky their drinking patterns are.

9.4 However, there are some estimation tools available that give an idea of the amount of
substance misuse occurring in a local area, and therefore, the support and treatment
needed. Public Health England estimates that nearly 4,000 residents across the City

and Hackney are dependent on alcohol, with 83% of those adults in Hackney and 69%
in the City not receiving treatment for this (see below).

Hackney H 17% of estimated number

94
The City
28 30% of estimated number
Il Extimotod numiber

Motes: Confidence intenvak wene mot mvailabie for nembeds in treatrment Bl n treatment

9.5 Additionally, the 2017/18 Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW) gives an
estimate of the prevalence of people using drugs in London, which can be used to give
a prevalence estimate by applying it to local population data. This crudely predicts the
number of residents using drugs in Hackney and the City, as seen below:

Substance type Mational Regional Hackney City of
prevalence | prevalence | estimated | London

England London Mo. estimated
| No.
Any Class A drug® |35% [33% 6,387 165
(22%° (1.9%)®
Any drug” 9.0% 93% 18,001 466
(6.4s%) (5.6%)

15
Page 32




9.6 The CSEW also estimates that around 2.1% of 16- to 59-year-olds nationally are
frequent drug users. Applied locally to 2018 population projections, these estimates
suggest that just over 4,000 16- to 59-year- olds in Hackney, and around 100 residents
in the City of London are frequent drug users.

97 Using the same approach, this time applying the CSEW percentage to the weekday

7:00am-7:00pm City of London population of c. 500,000 (comprising commuters,
visitors and learners) it can be estimated that there are around 10,000 frequent drug
users in the Square Mile at these times.

Public Health England uses a tool developed by Liverpool John Moores University to

9.8 estimate the prevalence of opiate and/or crack cocaine use in local areas. This tool

suggests there are approximately 2,880 residents across Hackney and the City using
opiates and/or crack cocaine. As with alcohol, there is a high level of unmet need, with
over half of those estimated as dependent on opiates and/or crack cocaine not
receiving treatment for this.

Data on drug offences can also give an indication about the prevalence of drugs within

9.9  the City of London. Within the (mainly business oriented) Core City wards, almost
three times as many drug offences were recorded in 2019 for Bishopsgate as for any
of the other wards:

Incidence Rates of Drugs per sgq km for Core City of London wards

Bishopsgate | C 7.1
Aldgate I (375

Langbourn I G S
Coleman Streat  INEEEEEEG—— 7.1
Bread Street NG 179.7

Cheap G 17:.7

Bridge G 156.3
Walbrook I 132.5
Candlewick IS 97.1

Combhill I 937
Dowgate N 72.6
Vintry BN 65.3
Broad Street WEEE 48.8
Cordwainer WM 33.5
Queenhithe W 222
Lime Street W 198
4] 200 400 BO0 800 1000 1200

9.10 The wider impact of alcohol and drugs can also be seen by looking in detail at
ambulance callouts (not all of which result in a hospital admission) in the Square Mile
for overdose/poisoning, as can be seen below, showing a steady increase for these
types of incidents until the COVID-19 lockdowns.




Incidents by month: overdose/poisoning (ingestion)

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

Mo of incidents

15

10

a1 a2 Q3 Q4 o1 a2 a3 4 a1 a2 a3 Q4 a1 az Q3 Q4
2017 2018 2015 2020

9.11The figure below shows concentrations and locations of these incidents in 2019, with
the biggest concentration - by some distance - being in Bishopsgate:

OVERDOSE/POISONING BY WARD IN 2019

Walbrook, 6

Bread
Street, 4

Coleman
Street, 6

3

Bishopsgate, 43

Bishopsgate as a driver of demand

9.12 Bishopsgate - in particular the area around Liverpool Street Station - is the largest
NTE area in the City and the impact is significantly higher in numbers of incidents, but also
generally in terms of rates of incidents per licensed premises. Liverpool Street has 256
licensed premises, with approximately 25% accessible by invitation, membership or
employment.

17
Page 34



9.13 The majority of licensed premises are located in the Bishopsgate ward close to
Liverpool Street Station, and this ward has the highest density of licensed premises
out of all the wards in the City of London. The area has the highest numbers and rates
for recorded violent incidents, sexual offences, BTP recorded incidents, TfL recorded
incidents and has the highest rating under the Traffic Light Scheme for the period.

9.14 Liverpool Street also had the highest number and rate of alcohol-related ambulance

callouts. Due to the low residential population in the area it is likely that the majority
of these are related to the night time economy. Although Liverpool Street had the
highest number of incidents under anti-social behaviour and pollution, the rate per
licensed premises was relatively low. This may be related to the density of licensed
premises in the area.

Dual Diagnosis

9.15 Poor mental health can be both a cause and a consequence of substance misuse.
Compared with the general population, people addicted to drugs or alcohol are
approximately twice as likely to suffer from mood and anxiety disorders and, similarly,
people with mental health problems are more likely to be dependent on drugs and/or
alcohol. Evidence indicates that alcohol use causally increases the risk of depression,
however, there is also evidence that many people in the UK drink alcohol in order to
help them cope with emotions or situations that they would otherwise find difficult to
manage.

9.16 Over 40% of new presentations to the local drug and alcohol treatment service in
2017/18 self-reported a concern with mental health and asked for support.
Understanding different user cohorts

9.17 Substance misusers in the Square Mile are not a single entity. There are a number of
different cohorts requiring different levels of support:

Opiate users and problematic Generally speaking, opiate users account for the
drug users majority of drug-related deaths. Opiate users
tend to have the highest call on services and the
greatest likelihood of harm. A significant portion
of opiate users are likely to be involved in
criminality to support their habit, which leads to
increasing victims of crime.

In the Square Mile there are effectively two
different cohorts of recreational drug users:

« Workforce users - that is, those who work in
the City but participate in recreational drug
abuse.

« Recreational users - as the City becomes a
Night Time Economy destination this will
attract visitors who may seek to enhance
their recreation with substance misuse

Recreational users

18
Page 35



Both these forms of use can be harmful. There may
be health and productivity issues in the workplace,
and OCGs and USGs may seek to profit from
burgeoning demand, bringing crime and
safeguarding issues into the Square Mile.

Whilst there is a culture of pavement drinking

Problematic alcohol use in public | outside licenced premises in the City, the
spaces consumption of alcohol in public places can go

hand
in hand with anti-social behaviour (ASB), which can
lead to feelings of insecurity amongst communities.

Street drinking is not illegal and we will be working

to tackle ASB as it occurs and provide access to
alcohol treatment services as required rather than
simply displacing street drinkers.

Those who sleep rough Where those who sleep rough staying overnight in

the City are identified as having drug and alcohol
problems we will work to bring them into

treatment.
Organised Crime Groups and We will work to disrupt the supply of drugs and the
Urban Street Gangs exploitation of vulnerable individuals which goes

alongside this through multi-agency work to tackle
OCGs. We will seek to support vulnerable people
identified as being at risk through access to gang
exit programmes and other support services as
appropriate.

Community perception Where communities feel concerned due to visible

signs of substance misuse, or behaviours linked to
substance misuse, we will work in partnership to
problem solve these issues

Our aims and strategic intentions

9.18 Our focus is on harm reduction. Where there is a criminal justice response to those
misusing substances, our priority as a partnership will be to provide access to

treatment for users.

9.19 Punitive and legislative responses on drug users are ineffective in reducing drug
supply and demand. However, we will focus on the harm and exploitation involved in the
supply of drugs through Organised Crime Groups (OCGs) and Urban Street Gangs

Page 36



(USGs). This will include seeking to disrupt their activity and support those being
exploited in support of them.

9.20 Responsible partner agencies will seek to:

e Ensure appropriate support is in place for offenders, with access to housing,
training and employment, financial aid, debt recovery and drugs and alcohol
services

e Support those who misuse drugs and/or alcohol to successfully treatment

e Enforce against persistent and prolific offenders who misuse drugs and/or alcohol
e Address drugs, as a driver of crime, and associated criminalities through innovative
initiatives

e Reduce the impact of alcohol on violent crime

e Make the City’s night time economy a safer place for leisure use

e Instigate successful interventions in the Liverpool Street area to reduce demand
on services through substance misuse in the night time economy.

9.21 Outcomes we want to achieve

e Improve public confidence through collaborative problem solving and community
based multi-agency campaigns which address drug litter, open use of drugs, and
drug and alcohol related anti-social behaviour

e Protecting the public and residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible premises.

e Maximise every opportunity to address offending behaviour that is driven by
abusing drugs and alcohol.

e Work with criminal justice partners to ensure that responses to young people’s
drug and alcohol related offending are appropriate to their needs.

¢ Develop a set of common standards that clearly identify “what works” in reducing
drug and alcohol related offending.

e Strengthen partnership responses to address the impact that drugs and alcohol
play in the exploitation of vulnerable children, young people and adults including:

1.domestic abuse

2.violent crime

3.sexual offences

4.child sexual exploitation
5.modern day slavery

How will we achieve this?

9.22 This includes a multifaceted approach that prioritises ‘early intervention and
prevention’, ‘evidence-based treatment and recovery support’, and ‘reducing drug
and alcohol related crime and anti-social behaviour through enforcement and
regulation.

9.23 We have agreed five objectives to deliver our strategy to reduce crime and disorder
linked to alcohol:

20




Inform

9.24 Responsible agencies on the partnership will help service users and potential service

users understand how to access statutory and non-statutory services to help those
with drug and alcohol issues. We will work with Licensing and Trading Standards to
manage night time economy and licensing issues and ensure these are communicated
to residents and visitors effectively.

Identify

9.25 Partners will support the development of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment to
help understand the extent of drug and alcohol issues in the borough. They will work with
health and frontline partners to identify service users who may require support and
intervention services. Alongside this, work will also be done to identify problem

premises and locations in partnership with licensing colleagues.

9.26 They will work together to identify hotspot areas of alcohol-related disorder and

manage these locations through a multi-agency approach, using available tools and
powers to close problematic locations and manage repeat offenders.

Prevent

9.27 Early identification and intervention are key to supporting vulnerable young people at
risk of offending and drug and alcohol misuse. It is essential that local agencies

including youth offending teams, police, custody healthcare, looked after children’s
services, education and health services take every opportunity to identify young

people at an early stage and work together to put in place appropriate support.

Similarly approaches to begging will be defined as a preventative approach.

9.28 For those young people who have come into contact with the Criminal Justice System

it is important that we identify their needs and put in place adequate provision to
support the young person’s desistance from further crime. Where substance misuse is
a part of wider issues in a young person’s life, it is important to take an integrated
multi-agency response, including family support.

9.29 Applicants for alcohol licences will be expected to demonstrate practical steps

towards the four objectives of the City’s Statement of Licensing Policy.
9.30 These are:

a) the prevention of crime and disorder

b) public safety

c) the prevention of public nuisance

d) the protection of children from harm

9.31 Evidence suggests that through local licensing arrangements a reduction in alcohol
related violence can be achieved.

21




9.32 As the City grows as a night-time economy destination, we will use campaigns to
promote safe and responsible drinking and delivers key safety messages, such as the
“Ask Angela” scheme to reduce the risk of sexual violence. This will largely be
delivered through the VAWG strategy (see below). We will continue to support the
successful “Safety Thirst” scheme which seeks to promote high standards in reducing
crime and ASB, whilst also helping to ensure a safe and pleasant environment for the
general public to socialise.

9.33 As a partnership we will embed prevention approaches and drugs information within

existing voluntary and statutory services, working with the Health and Wellbeing
Board as appropriate.

Protect and Support

9.34 We will focus on reducing the risks for our most vulnerable people. We recognise that
the criminal exploitation of children and vulnerable adults can take many forms

including the use of drugs and alcohol in grooming. Gangs typically use children, young
people, and vulnerable adults to deliver drugs to customers and this often involves

them being subjected to deception, intimidation, violence, and both financial and

sexual exploitation.

9.35 The Criminal Justice System offers several routes into support and treatment. Our

local programmes such as Liaison and Diversion in our police custody suites give us the
opportunity to make sure that offenders are offered the right help at the right time.

9.36 ltis important that those involved in drug and alcohol related crime are given every

opportunity to address their offending behaviour as well as being punished for their
actions. We will ensure that our criminal justice agencies and drug and alcohol
services work better together. We will promote the use of out of court disposals and
community sentences, such as drug and alcohol treatment requirements which
require offenders to engage with services, and we will work closely with prisons in the
resettlement of offenders

9.37 City Corporation are committed to enhancing their provision of specialist high support
accommodation for street homeless with complex needs including substance misuse.

9.38 Responsible partners provide a range of treatment and recovery support based on
what is realistic and achievable for this cohort of drug users and their families.

Pursue and Prosecute

9.39 There is evidence that drug law enforcement action can have some local impact but
when delivered in isolation the benefits can be short-lived. The evidence suggests it is

far more effective to identify underlying problems in a place and for communities and
services to work together to resolve them5. However, all partners will work with City

of London Police to enforce licence breaches as appropriate where the objectives in

the councils Statement of Licensing Policy are at risk.

https://www.ukdpc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Policy%20report%20-%20Tackling%20drug
%20markets%20and%20distribution%20networks%20in%20the%20UK.pdf

22
Page 39



9.40 Trading Standards have a regulatory function in relation to protecting consumers.
Trading standards can undertake under 18 test purchases based on intelligence to
protect children from harm.

9.41 City of London Police will work in partnership with statutory partners including the

City Corporation to identify on-street and in-venue drug dealing locations and seek to
identify perpetrators. The SCP will seek to diminish the opportunities of organised
crime groups supplying and distributing drugs across the borough.

Links to other strategies

9.42 Whilst the SCP has a statutory responsibility to have in place a strategy to reduce
crime and disorder linked to drugs and alcohol, delivery of actions to mitigate this will
be through other priorities, namely:

o SCP ASB, Neighbourhoods and Night-time Economy Strategy

o SCP Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy and City of London Police VAWG
strategic delivery plan

o SCP Reducing Reoffending Strategy

» SCP Serious Violence Reduction Strategy

o SCP Vulnerability Strategy

9.43 There are complementary strategies across other partnerships in the city which will
also contribute towards the achievement of this objective, including:
« Health and Wellbeing

« Safeguarding

o Licensing

« Policing Plan

« Homelessness

o Housing

o Children and Young People’s Plan




10. Safeguarding and supporting high risk and vulnerable children and adults

from harm

Why is this a priority?

10.1 The exploitation of vulnerable people (including children) is a national issue,
encompassing county lines, cuckooing, modern day slavery, radicalisation and child
sexual exploitation. In addition to this, communities and individuals can be at risk due
to their demographic characteristics, this is known as hate crime. The range of issues
identified within this priority are often classed as “hidden high harms” - that is, they
are not publicly visible, but their impact can be significant.

10.2 We will seek to support and protect those most vulnerable in our community. Those

at risk of domestic abuse and violence against women and girls will be supported
through the City of London VAWG strategy 2019-23, but there is a clear link between
those who are vulnerable as victims or witnesses of domestic abuse and a broader
range of vulnerabilities.

10.3 A small number of highly vulnerable individuals are at risk from a range of potential

harms. We will work in partnership with other multi-agency arrangements including
safeguarding boards to identify those at risk and seek to intervene early to support
these individuals and increase their resilience.

Our aims and strategic intentions

10.4 We will seek to protect vulnerable individuals and communities from the following
hidden harms:

eSerious and Organised Crime

oChild Sexual Exploitation

eCounty Lines

eModern Slavery

eRadicalisation

eCuckooing

eSexual Exploitation

10.5 We will also seek to support the aims and objectives of the City of London Suicide
Prevention plan where appropriate.
10.6 The table below provides an agreed definition for each hidden harm.

Harm Definition

Serious and Organised Planned and coordinated criminal behaviour and

Crime conduct by people working together on a continuing
basis.

Child Sexual Exploitation Child sexual exploitation (CSE) is a form of child

sexual abuse. It occurs where an individual or group
takes advantage of an imbalance of power to

24
Page 41



coerce, manipulate or deceive a child or young
person under the age of 18 into sexual activity (a) in
exchange for something the victim needs or wants,
and/or (b) for the financial advantage or increased
status of the perpetrator or facilitator. The victim
may have been sexually exploited even if the sexual
activity appears consensual. Child sexual
exploitation does not always involve physical
contact; it can also occur through the use of
technology.

County Lines A form of criminal exploitation in which criminals

groom and manipulate children into drug dealing.
The 'lines' refer to mobile phones that are used to
control a young person who is delivering drugs,
often to towns outside their home county.

Modern Slavery The recruitment, movement, harbouring or

receiving of children, women or men using force,
coercion, abuse of vulnerability, deception or other
means for the purpose of exploitation.

Radicalisation The process by which a person comes to support

terrorism and extremist ideologies associated with
terrorist groups.

A practice where people take over a person's home

Cuckooing and use the property to facilitate exploitation

Sexual Exploitation Sexual exploitation includes rape, prostitution,

sexual photography, subjection to pornography or
witnessing sexual acts and sexual assault or sexual
acts to which the adult has not consented or was
pressured into consenting.

Outcomes we want to achieve

10.7 By their nature, hidden harms are under-reported. For each hidden harm we will seek
to achieve the following outcomes:

e Anincrease in reported incidents to the police, reflecting a community more

confident in receiving support from the state

e Anincrease in the volume of defendants prosecuted

¢ Anincrease in the volume of successful prosecutions

10.8 The exception to this will be in radicalisation, where we will be seeking to increase
the percentage of successful discharges from the City of London Channel Panel. This panel

25
Page 42



is a statutory multi-agency body which seeks to reduce the risk of being drawn into
terrorism of those vulnerable to radicalisation.

How will we achieve this?

Harm Activity

Inform - we will work to communicate tell-tale
signs of Serious and Organised Crime (SOC) to
communities and partners, including information on

Serious and Organised
Crime

reporting routes.

Identify - we will bring together information in a

Serious and Organised Local Crime Profile to help
identify victims, offenders, locations and those at
risk of being drawn into SOC

Prevent - we will Intervene to stop people being
drawn into different types of serious and organised
crime

Protect and Support - we will improve protective

security and support those who have been victims
of organised crime

Pursue and Prosecute - we will develop an

authoritative intelligence picture of organised crime
and work with the police and others to lead,
coordinate and support our response

Inform - we will work with the City and Hackney
Safeguarding Children Partnership to support
communication to professionals around spotting the
signs of CSE and understand how to make referrals.

Child Sexual Exploitation

Identify - to ensure that we have current knowledge
of locations, individuals and groups who sexually
exploit, as well as emerging issues and models of
targeting and exploiting children in order that we can
act upon early indicators relating to individual
children and young people at risk and shape services

appropriate to their needs.
Prevent - to prevent children, young people at risk

from experiencing or continuing to experience
sexual exploitation

Protect and Support - to work together to safeguard
current victims of sexual exploitation to minimise

Page 43



harm, reduce opportunities for perpetrators to
target victims and to provide appropriate support,
intervention, information and recovery services to
children, young people, parents, and at risk.

Pursue and Prosecute - to successfully prosecute

those who perpetrate or facilitate the exploitation
of children and young people at risk, and to disrupt
activities and locations so as to prevent further
incidents of sexual exploitation.

County Lines

Inform - we will work to help practitioners to

recognise the signs of County Lines and respond
appropriately so that potential victims get the
support and help they need.

Identify - we will work with City of London Police
and other agencies to identify County Lines
operations in City of London and profile those who
may be at risk.

Prevent - we will work with partners to prevent
young people at risk of exploitation from County
Lines from being victimised by perpetrators.

Protect and Support - we will support those who
have been identified as being at risk by providing
routes out of County Lines activity and providing
safe havens for them to do so.

Pursue and Prosecute - we will seek to identify
those operating County Lines in the City through
multi-agency working and support City of London
Police to prosecute them.

Modern Slavery

Inform - we will work with partners to increase
awareness of Modern Slavery through the City of
London Modern Slavery Working Group.

Page 44




Identify - we will develop intelligence products with
partners which will help us identify potential
modern slavery incidents in City of London

Prevent - we will work with the City of London

Modern Slavery Working Group to increase the
numbers of local businesses operating in City of
London who have adopted a Modern Slavery
statement.

Protect and Support - we will seek to support those

at risk of Modern Slavery or who have been victims
of this

Pursue and Prosecute - we will work with City of

London Police and other partners to identify
individuals and organisations operating Modern
Slavery and bring them to justice.

Radicalisation

Inform - we will seek to improve training on
spotting the signs of safety for radicalisation
amongst frontline workers as per our obligations
under the Prevent Duty.

Identify - we will develop a risk assessment for City

of London based on the police’s Counter Terrorism
Local Profile. This will inform the Prevent action plan
we will develop separately to deliver our obligations
under the Prevent Duty.

Prevent - we will close down spaces for extremists

to operate in City of London and ensure that there
are meaningful referral pathways for those
identified as being at risk of being drawn into or
supporting terrorism.

Protect and Support - we will support individuals

who have been identified as being vulnerable
through the City of London Channel Panel and
provide support to

Pursue and Prosecute - we will support Counter

Terrorism Policing through information sharing and
operational responses in enforcing action against
those suspected of planning terrorist attacks, being
members of a proscribed organisation, or seeking to
radicalise others. We will disrupt radicalising

Page 45




behaviour where appropriate.

Cuckooing

Inform - we will work with partners including

Housing and Social Care to understand issues
around cuckooing.

Identify - we will seek to share information with

partners to help identify cuckooing in action and
understand how to make referrals

Prevent - We will seek to identify those who may be

vulnerable to cuckooing and provide advice, support
and access to services to prevent this from
happening.

Protect and Support - We will work with those who

are victims of cuckooing to help them access
support and exit the situation safely.

Pursue and Prosecute - we will work with City of

London Police and others, using a full range of tools
and powers, to bring those who would seek to
cuckoo properties to justice.




11. Violence against Women and Girls

11.1 Our strategic vision is that:

“The Square Mile is free from Violence Against Women

and Girls (VAWG) and is a place that is safe for everyone to live, work and learn”
with examples of VAWG including:

eDomestic abuse (including coercive control)

eSexual violence and rape

oStalking and sexual harassment

eOnline abuse

eFemale Genital Mutilation (FGM)

eForced marriage

eHonour-based violence

eFaith-based abuse

eTrafficking and sexual exploitation

eProstitution

eBreast ironing

eForced terminations

eGendered gang violence

11.2 The SCP oversees a distinct “Violence Against Women Girls Strategy”, which is due to
be refreshed in 2023. The actions outlined below summarise the situation at the

outset of the SCP strategy in 2022, but the VAWG strategy may change some of these
details when the refresh occurs.

11.3 We acknowledge that VAWG impacts all services (adult and children social care,
public health, housing, community safety, civil and criminal justice as well as voluntary and
community organisations) and it is the responsibility of all agencies to tackle VAWG

and address the needs of survivors and their families. Hence the SCP is committed to
working in an inclusive partnership method to develop a whole system approach to
VAWG, bringing together the criminal and justice system, the NHS, local authorities,
voluntary and community sector, service users and other partners. In this manner the

SCP response to VAWG will be coordinated to prevent further harm, reduce risk and
increase safety for people residing, working, studying and travelling in the City.

11.4 VAWG affects people regardless of their sexual orientation, gender, gender identity,
age, religion, culture, ethnicity, background or disability. As well as the VAWG act

there are a range of consequences, such as homelessness, mental health issues and
substance misuse, that need to be addressed. We will aim to understand and meet
survivors needs and aspirations with effective risk management, safety planning, safe
accommodation, emotional support, healthcare, education, legal aid and access to
justice.

11.5 Our VAWG strategy is built around three priorities:

Priority One: People are prevented from becoming victims of VAWG

30 Page 47



11.6 Prevention is the first step to fulfil our vision that “The Square Mile is free from VAWG
and is a place that is safe for everyone to live, work and learn”.

11.7 Undeniably, if we can ameliorate awareness of and prevent VAWG or identify

occurrences early and intervene, it will improve outcomes for individuals, stop
violence escalating to critical levels, while reducing the pressures on services long
term.

11.8 Improved awareness of VAWG and training in identification will:

e|ncrease chances of intervening at an earlier stage
eStop violence escalating to critical levels

eReduce pressure on services, and

e|mprove outcomes for individuals

11.9 Additionally, prevention of VAWG will improve the Square Mile population’s

resilience, well-being, warding off of adverse childhood experiences, mental iliness
and homelessness in the years to come.

What we will do:

Awareness

« We will raise awareness of VAWG (its occurrences, how to prevent it, how to spot the
signs and what services are available to people at risk as well as survivors), through
internal and external communication campaigns. We will deliver joint campaigns with
partner agencies such as the City of London Police and neighbouring London boroughs.

o Communication plans will be applicable and accessible to our audiences. For example:
awareness campaigns will be multilingual and there will be signposting to specialised
campaigns/information for our vulnerable cohorts.

« We will strengthen awareness partnership work within the City Corporation’s various
services (community safety, children and community services, housing, employment
and licensing) as well as with external agencies (hotels, licensed premises) along with
community and voluntary sector specialist providers to allow clarity on messages,
adopting a consistent ethos that all VAWG is unacceptable in the City of London. Every
point of interaction with a victim is an opportunity for prevention and intervention and
should not be missed. We will aim to promote the Women’'s Safety Charter and
encourage licensed venues to sign up. We will deliver a joint campaign with Hackney
Council to raise awareness of the Charter and promote the joint responsibility of
keeping women safe at night

+ We will support the following agencies to have information publicly available on VAWG
support services: GPs, hospitals, schools, children’s centres, family planning/sexual
health services and council offices.

» We will challenge those attitudes and behaviour towards women and men which can
lead to violence and abuse and act early to prevent harm. We will do this




through effective, sustainable and robust commissioning and training to deliver

resources and campaigns to challenge and change attitudes.

Promote nationally acclaimed campaigns such as This is Abuse to build awareness.

We will raise awareness and promote the 16 Days of Activism Against VAWG.

We will engage with religious leaders to raise awareness in cohorts where VAWG tends
to be under-reported.

We will aim to deliver a campaign working with construction companies to promote
support for modern day slavery amongst laborers.

Training and learning

We will make sure practitioners have the training (comprehensive), tools (Safelives
DASH risk assessment) and support they need to identify and respond early before
situations of violence occur and/or escalate to crisis point. We will also ensure those
practitioners receive feedback on which of their actions are effective and safe or not.
We are currently looking at better ways of promoting this training to ensure it reaches
as many people as possible.

We will deliver training around changes to practices including statutory recording of
domestic abuse in safeguarding cases.

We will disseminate learning from the Domestic Homicide Reviews, Serious Case
Reviews and Safeguarding Adult Review.

11.10 We will aim for the schools and tender to work in partnership to deliver training and
awareness to school pupils. There are clear referral pathways and regular contact in

place between the City of London schools and the City of London Police Public

Protection Unit.

The staff at the schools are regularly offered training around how to spot the signs of
domestic abuse and Female Genital Mutilation, pupils have sessions on healthy
relationships (as proposed in the Relationship, Education, relationships and sex
education, and health education: Government response 2019).

We will offer a guide for schools around risk assessment, as there have been differences
in professional judgement around ‘risk’ between schools and the police.

We will aim to achieve accreditation for the Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance (DAHA)
and ensure that all staff working on our housing estates are trained to know how to
spot the signs and respond to domestic abuse and VAWG. By achieving DAHA the City
Corporation would be a local authority that is recognised as being committed to
protecting and supporting residents from domestic abuse.

We will offer training to licensed venues signed up to the Safety Thirst Scheme, working
with external agencies such as Galop to ensure they are able to recognise and respond
to incidents of VAWG especially around our most vulnerable cohorts such as children
and young people and LGBTQI+.

We will support the safeguarding partnerships by implementing statutory guidance
released under the 2014 care act: delivering training around changes to practice
including statutory recording of domestic abuse in safeguarding cases; conducting
review of the links between domestic abuse, elder abuse and carers

Page 49



(either as victims or perpetrators), high risk domestic abuse and domestic homicide in order
to improve local practice.

« We will deliver training and promotion on the Safelives DASH risk assessment and the
MARAC to ensure agencies understand how to refer, when to refer and the purpose of
the MARAC. SafeLives estimate that the Col should have around ten cases per year
heard at the MARAC. In 2018 the City of London MARAC heard five cases.

« We will ensure frontline staff are trained on the needs of older survivors, including
pensions and benefits available to them.

Early intervention

o Our Early Help team will work with the families to raise awareness of VAWG, support
the entire family and prevent harm.

« We will aim to increase early interventions to people experiencing VAWG through
mainstream and specialist support services by encouraging the creation of early
identification and response system within its various departments and partner
agencies.

Community development

« We will support residents, workers and employers especially non-violent/abusive
members, to be educated about, take responsibility and proactively respond if they
encounter abuse and to know how to help family, friends, colleagues and neighbours
through ongoing communication campaigns, community engagement, prevention and
awareness raising. The aim is that victims, residents, students, visitors and workers
should be confident that they live/work in a community that has zero tolerance for a
and they know how to get help should they experience any problem.

« We will ensure residents know that their local authority take a lead in challenging the
community to tackle VAWG, that their local authority is committed to ensuring healthy,
safe, equal and violence-free relationships.

« We will ask businesses and various agencies, through the use of surveys, events and
networks how we can help them support their service users/employees and offer them
tailored training and information. We will ensure these organisations have a clear
protocol around how they identify and respond to staff members at risk of domestic
abuse by promoting and translating the ‘Spotting the Signs’ toolkit.

» We will encourage support agencies in the City of London to adopt protocols regarding
joined-up responses and inter-agency information sharing.

Priority Two: People affected by VAWG have access to support services

11.11 Once an occurrence of VAWG has taken place our services must be easily accessed

by the victim, considering any inequity to access that may be prevalent in some population

groups.




11.12 The victim should feel believed, listened to, respected and not blamed; they must be
informed on how to engage with services, what will happen next; get expert

independent advice and feel supported short and long term.

11.13 Awareness of available services and easy access to support services matter because
needs can remain unreported and unaddressed. When people are unable to access

care and support, it has serious negative impact on people’s lives (e.g. alcohol and drug
problems, loss of employment, debt, housing problems and homelessness),

families and communities (e.g. adverse childhood experiences, family breakdown, crime or
anti-social behaviour) and other services. It also matters because some

groups in our diverse communities are under-represented in our services, including

children and young people, LGBTQI+ people and older adults.

11.14 The response to an instance of VAWG must be coordinated, holistic, consistent,
confidential, safe and personalised.

11.15 Avreferral pathway was created for all professionals with a step-by-step process
detailing how people will be supported if a disclosure of domestic abuse is made. It

was then circulated to the Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Forum for it to be
embedded in standard practice.

11.16 Being clear on the demographics of our communities and working in partnership
with service providers with whom the City Corporation has trusted relationships will enable
a consistent delivery of services.

What we will do

Services

« We will aim to provide high quality services which are easily accessible, flexible, and
available in a timely way to a wide range of survivors.

« We will monitor performance of both mainstream and specialist services regularly to
ensure the provisions available remain efficient and useful by collecting various data
(number of referrals and their origins, outcomes, costs, etc.).

« We will aim to regularly review the City Corporation website to ensure that the
resources available on the website are kept up to date and relevant.

» We will ensure the City Corporation’s Domestic Abuse Policy is regularly reviewed and
updated.

« We will aim to increase access to services and provisions through outreach workers and
community navigators.

« We will ensure that victims and survivors can influence service development (service
user satisfaction surveys) through regular feedback on services and consultation.

« We will utilise a cross-sector recognised specialist quality standards and outcomes
framework to ensure quality provision with commissioning, for example the DAHA.

« We will ensure access to counselling services through partner agencies such as Iranian
Kurdish Women'’s Rights Organisation (IKWRO).

Page 51



We have made a commitment to tackling child sexual exploitation and modern-day
slavery and will continue to provide and commission services to fight these issues.

We will support women and girls at risk from gangs.

We will continue to provide a robust police response and access to criminal justice
remedies.

We will continue to provide access to refuge provision as identified by survivors as
essential in making the decision to leave an abusive relationship.

We will aim to ensure the safety of those who stay in their own homes by providing
security measures.

We will promote the 24-hours Victim Support helpline.

Partnership

We will aim to support survivors of VAWG in the short and long term in their health,
social and economic wellbeing and treat them with equality regardless of their life
choices, culture, age, gender, sexuality, immigration status, etc. by liaising with various
partner agencies.

We will endeavour to work with primary care networks, the City and Hackney Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) and other CCGs, to promote a consistent response in GP
practices via the use of the Identification Referral to Improve Safety (IRIS) model around
domestic violence and abuse.

We will increase access locations, strengthen working relationships and improve
referral pathways between providers, partners and agencies.

We will promote coordinated need-led and risk-led provisions and services (safety but
also housing, advocacy, employment, benefit support, child custody, criminal cases, civil
justice measures, resettlement, therapeutic, group work and peer mentoring) and
provide joined up specialist and bespoke responses

We will work collaboratively with St Mungo’s and other voluntary sector services to aim
to ensure that staff are trained to respond to disclosures and incidents of VAWG, and
staff know where to refer or signpost individuals for support.

The City of London Police will work with the voluntary sector to encourage sex workers
to report crime and seek assistance.

We will aim to ensure the City of London Police and VAWG support services are working
in partnership to signpost and refer people that are not City of London residents and
affected by VAWG for appropriate support.

We will work in partnership with the City of London Police Cybercrime team to ensure
people who are experiencing online abuse are receiving advice from the police and
being referred for specialist support.

We will develop a multi-agency approach that reflects the varying need of individuals
involved with sex work.

We will aim to work with specialist human trafficking services to provide support to
survivors and avoid repeat victimisation.

We will provide survivors of VAWG with advocacy support throughout the
Criminallustice process, from the early stages of reporting the incident through to
support at court.

We will ensure the safety of victims at court including a separate waiting area and that
they are referred to the Witness Service when giving evidence in court.

Page 52



« We will aim to invest in resources to help prevent women and girls entering
prostitution, to reduce harm to them whilst in it and to help them to be able to exit and
have viable alternatives.

o We will aim to criminalise those who profit from individuals selling sex - pimps,
managers, exploiters as well as challenge the demand for prostitution by penalising the
buyers of prostitution.

Vulnerable cohorts

« We will ensure continued provision to survivors with a range of needs/ complex needs
(women-only support group, accommodation and services, face to face multi-lingual
support, LGBTQI+ only space, SEND specialist services and counsellingservices).

« We will ensure that children and young people witnessing/victims of abuse are
supported, and that they understand the meaning of VAWG, healthy relationships and
consent.

« We will link in with CityAdvice to ensure people working within the City of London are
supported.

« We will engage the ‘hidden workforce’ in support and services available to workers in
the City of London.

« We will identify and support high-risk domestic abuse cases and provide support to
those who need it most.

» We will ensure that men and boys who have been affected by any of the issues under
VAWG are supported.

Priority Three: Perpetrators are held to account and rehabilitated

11.17 We want to ensure that VAWG perpetrators are held to account for their actions
and deterred from reoffending through rehabilitation. This means that they will be
supported to understand that the impacts and implications on victims, their children

and themselves is an important step forward in ending violence. Rehabilitation gives
perpetrators the opportunity to take responsibility for their behaviour and make

positive change.

11.18 Perpetrators need to access help to sustainably change their behaviour, this is
particularly important for those women who do not want to end the relationship.

What we will do
Response
« We will aim to improve the arrest conviction rate of perpetrators.
» We will provide interventions to manage risks posed by perpetrators and support them
to change their behaviour.
+ We will work closely with the City of London Police, the national probation service and
community rehabilitation company and the East London specialist domestic violence
court to provide an effective criminal justice response and pursue perpetrators.

Page 53



We will work directly with perpetrators of abuse as needed to reduce the risk they pose
as well as protecting victims and survivors. This will complement working with
perpetrators within children and young people services, the national probation service
and the community rehabilitation company.

We will encourage young people to join the City of London cadet’s if they have
experienced or perpetrated VAWG.

We will commission perpetrator programmes for perpetrators involved with City
Corporation’s Social Care. We will refer perpetrators who do not meet the threshold for
a programme to be commissioned to a specialist perpetrator service such as Respect.
We will work to engage with the British Transport Police, the night-time economy and
City of London Police to hold perpetrators to account and counter sexual harassment on
transport, on our streets - in public as much as private spaces.

We will ensure that systems such as MARAC and MAPPA, already in place to deal with
high risk victims, will continue to work in partnership to ensure effective responses to
these victims and perpetrators.

We will explore the option of perpetrator programmes for women with external
specialist agencies such as Respect.

We will investigate utilising the ColL police lifetime offender management unit for
prolific VAWG offenders in the City of London.

We will ensure partnership working through the police and Crown Prosecution Service
response, specialist domestic violence courts, sanctions and interventions.

We will support victims and signpost them for legal advice when applying for civil
injunctions and ensure breaches are notified to the police.

We will lobby criminal courts to order the use of electronic tagging to monitor
behaviour and movements of perpetrators.

We will encourage The City of London Police to keep delivering training and awareness
workshops to their staff on Domestic Violence Protection Orders and Domestic Violence
Notice Orders to increase the use of these orders.

We will continue to encourage victimless prosecutions, in cases where victims are
unable or unwilling to pursue the perpetrators themselves, to make the Square Mile
safer for everyone.

We will work with Criminal Justice Courts to explore ways that vulnerable victims can
give evidence at a secure location away from the court.

We will aim to create a collaboration between the police and the NHS to support
perpetrators and victims, by addressing mental health support needs.

We will encourage the City of London Police to supply body worn cameras to frontline
officers who might respond to VAWG incidents.

Campaigns and training
« We will deliver awareness raising campaigns aimed at perpetrators to encourage them

to take responsibility for their actions, rather than putting responsibility to stay safe on
the victim.

o Reduce perpetrator risk by intervening to address their behaviour through prevention

and rehabilitation workshops as well as training of offenders.

« Services will be identified to support people and specialist training will be offered to

service providers who work with perpetrators in order to be skilled and

Page 54



confident to engage and champion the positive outcomes of perpetrator
programmes.

« We will ensure the City of London Police and the Metropolitan Police are
working in partnership using the stalking threat assessment centre.

« We will aim to create pathways between the Civil and Family Courts and the City
of London Police to ensure that protection orders are being monitored.

« We will aim to challenge the lack of separate waiting rooms in Civil and Family
Courts for victims and perpetrators of domestic abuse. We will also aim to work
with Civil and Family Courts to ensure Judges are trained on domestic abuse and
VAWG.

« We are supporting the Draft Domestic Abuse Bill in its aim to pilot the use of
polygraph testing as a condition for high-risk offenders’ release.

12. Serious violence

Why is this a priority?

12.1 Serious violence, as defined in the National Serious Violence Strategy, includes “...

homicide, knife crime and gun crime, and areas of criminality where serious violence
or its threat is inherent, such as in county lines drug dealing... and other forms of
serious assault”. It does not currently include domestic abuse, sexual abuse and
alcohol, but this is under review, and these issues are dealt with elsewhere in the City
of London Community Safety Strategy.

12.2 Serious violence is a national priority due to its growing prevalence and impact. There

has been a significant rise in serious violence, with increases in homicide, knife and
gun crime in virtually all police force areas since 2014. Robbery has also risen
significantly since 2016. The violence is often gang related and the association with
drugs markets, particularly crack cocaine, is evident. Too frequently, children are the
victims of gun crime, knife crime and exploitation, in many cases by organised criminal
groups running ‘county lines’.

12.3 Inresponse, the government published ‘Ending Gang and Youth Violence: Community

Engagement’ in 2014, and its Serious Violence Strategy in 2018. Both documents
advocate an end-to-end approach, from prevention and early intervention to law
enforcement, and a strengthened partnership response involving statutory and non-
statutory partners, including the local community and businesses.

12.4 A new statutory duty was placed on Community Safety Partnerships in 20226 to

address serious violence. Although this element has not been enacted at the time of
writing, current government plans suggest that each area should deliver a local
strategy based on a strategic needs assessment which identifies the drivers of serious
violence acting in the local area and the cohorts of people most affected or at risk. The
Strategy should “outline the multi-agency response that the partnership will take to
address the drivers identified in the strategic needs assessment and work to prevent

é Police, Sentencing and Courts Act - Serious Violence Duty

Page 55



and reduce serious violence in the specified local area. The strategy should set out
how the proposed actions will enhance and complement existing local arrangements
responding to serious violence.” This is the City of London’s first Serious Violence
Strategy.

Key Issues

12.5 Unlike other forms of crime and disorder, violent crime in the Square Mile has steadily
increased over the past seven years to 2022. Violent crime costs the local economy an
estimated £15m:; this is around two thirds of the total cost of crime in the City of

London. In the City of London hotspots of violent crime are focused on concentrations

of licensed premises and transport hubs.

12.6 London has seen increases in violence over recent years following a decade of

declining crime rates; violence against the person offences have risen by more than
60% since 2014. This violence appears to have become more serious, as well as more
frequent; the proportion of attempted murders and robberies involving a knife has
increased by five percentage points since 2014. Although serious violence in the City
has not reached the levels of some of the neighbouring boroughs, violence in the
Square Mile is increasing.

Violence Against the Person 2016-21

500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100

50

01020304010203040102030401020304010203 Q40102
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Figure 1: Violence against the person in City of London 2014-22; City of London police
recorded crimes.

12.7 National research suggests that the following are drivers of serious violence:

» Education, Employment and training
1.Poor school attendance and attainment
2.High levels of poor emotional and mental health needs in school age children

3.High levels of young people not in education employment or training

39
Page 56



« Alcohol and Substance Misuse
1. High levels of hospital admission for substance misuse (15-24 year olds)
2.High levels of hospital admissions for alcohol-specific conditions (under 18s)

« Parenting, Families and Communities
1.Early years child development
o Child poverty and unemployment

12.8 Whilst these indicators are low in the City, the Square Mile borders seven London
boroughs, all of whom have outcomes beneath the national average in these
indicators and are deemed to be higher risk areas for serious violence.

12.9 There is no set definition of serious violent crime. The Home Office have chosen to

focus on homicide, knife crime and firearms offences. However, we are keen to
broaden our oversight to a wider range of offences to provide us with a fuller picture
of violent crime in the City and to help build our performance management
framework. These include:

» Violence with injury
 Violence without injury
« Homicide

» Possession of a weapon
« Robbery

Our aims and strategic intentions

12.10 In line with agreed national approaches around serious violence, we will take a “public
health” approach to tackling serious violence as a partnership.

12.11 Furthermore, the SCP supports the World Health Organization’s (WHO) definition of
taking a public health approach to reducing violent crime. A public health approach

that “seeks to improve the health and safety of all individuals by addressing

underlying risk factors that increase the likelihood that an individual will become a

victim or a perpetrator of violence. By definition, Public health aims to provide the

maximum benefit for the largest number of people. Programmes for primary

prevention of violence based on the public health approach are designed to expose a
broad segment of a population to prevention measures and to reduce and prevent
violence at a population-level.”
12.12 The success measures for the national programme are reductions in:
» hospital admissions for assaults with a knife or sharp object and especially among those
victims aged under 25;
 knife-enabled serious violence and especially among those victims aged under 25, based on
police recorded crime data;
+ all non-domestic homicides and especially among those victims aged under 25 involving
knives.

Page 57



12.13 We will seek to understand the baseline data for these national success measures
and develop our own performance framework on top of this.

How will we achieve this?

12.14 There are substantial crossovers with other elements of this strategy. Vulnerability is
acknowledged by national government as key driver of serious violence, with those
vulnerable groups at risk of being drawn into criminality as well as being more likely to

be victims. Drugs and alcohol are known to be drivers of violent crime, including

demand for opiates and the mismanagement of the night time economy. Although
domestic abuse is dealt with elsewhere in this strategy, there are clear links between
adverse childhood experiences and perpetrators of violent crime; this includes

witnessing or being a victim of domestic abuse.

Inform

12.15 We will work with statutory partners as per the Police, Courts and Sentencing Act to
help develop a strategic needs assessment for serious violent crime, and to help

understand the impact of the causes of violent crime and the importance of delivering
these. We will adopt a public health approach which will seek to expose a broad

segment of the City’s population to violence preventative measures.

Identify

12.16 We will develop a dedicated Strategic Needs Assessment based on a range of
sources to further support our understanding and commissioning around serious violence in
the Square Mile. We will seek out opportunities for relevant funding to support joint
working opportunities throughout the Prevent-Prosecute cycle as outlined below.

Prevent

e Responsible partners7 will seek to prevent the onset of serious violence or to change
behaviour so that serious violence is prevented from happening. We will ensure
relevant bodies are sharing timely information to understand and respond to local
needs and prevent serious violence.

e Responsible partners maximise opportunities to work with children and families before
issues arise and when they do arise, respond in a swift and co-ordinated way.

o Improving existing partnerships and links with City schools to develop opportunities to
support and identify those who may be vulnerable through attendance and behavioural
issues and escalate into support services where required.

e Responsible partners will equip professionals with the skills to identify and respond to

Adverse Childhood Experiences and a trauma-informed approach.

7

“Responsible Partners” refer to those named in the Crime and Disorder Act - namely,
local government, police, fire and rescue services, local health boards and probation
providers.

41
Page 58



Responsible partners will work with the licensed trade to help reduce serious violence.
Responsible partners will support families experiencing serious violence to stop the
intergenerational cycle of violence from continuing through the Family Support
programme.

Responsible partners will support education providers in reducing exclusions and off-
rolling from school.

Seek to communicate to communities the risks and indicators of serious violence
Engage with communities to listen and understand activities and risks as outlined in our
local serious violence profile.

Ensure the involvement of local communities in problem solving issues of serious
violence in their communities alongside neighbourhood policing.

Protect and Support

Responsible partners will work with a range of early intervention services to identify
potential victims and potential offenders

Signpost into mentoring, coaching or other forms of targeted interventions with
children and young people at risk of involvement in violence or knife carrying.
Responsible partners will divert children away from harm through positive activities
Responsible partners will work with voluntary and faith groups in developing and
supporting the mentoring of our most at-risk young people as a way to change
behaviour.

Responsible partners will support the Tower Hamlets and City of London Youth
Offending Service to address the needs of young people most at risk of being drawn
into continuing violence.

Responsible partners will work with the Integrated Offender Management programme
to provide employment, education and training opportunities for ex-offenders as
appropriate.

Responsible partners will support MAPPA (Multi-Agency Public Protection
Arrangements) for high-risk violent offenders.

Pursue and Prosecute

Responsible partners will direct proactive operational enforcement activity within hot-
spot areas across the City to target serious violent crime.

Responsible partners will carry out proportionate enforcement activity that is focused
on the identified problem profile

Identify and prosecute irresponsible retailers who sell knives and other weapons to
children and young people

Responsible partners will support City of London Police and the National Crime Agency
to undertake enforcement and innovative practice to tackle emerging or persistent
serious violence

Responsible partners will support City of London Police in taking targeted enforcement
and disruption action against drivers of serious violence (county lines, drug markets etc)
Responsible partners will maximise enforcement opportunities through effective
partnership work across the Criminal Justice System and through Integrated Offender
Management, prisons and probation as well as partnership enforcement approaches.

Page 59



13. Tackling serious acts of discrimination including hate crime

13.1 Hate crime is any criminal offence which is perceived by the victim or any other
person, to be motivated by hostility or prejudice, based on a person's disability

or perceived disability; race or perceived race; or religion or perceived religion; or
sexual orientation or perceived sexual orientation or transgender identity or perceived
transgender identity.8

13.2 The purpose of the strategy is to provide clear direction for stakeholders to deliver an

effective and robust response to tackle hate crime. The strategy will establish the
activities of the partnership over the next three years and will outline how it will
review and implement change.

Why is this a priority?

13.3 Hate crime can have a significant impact on victims as it targets a fundamental part of
their identity. We know from research that victims of hate crime are more likely to

suffer repeat victimisation and serious psychological impact. Hate crime is also a

damaging social problem that harms entire families and communities, as well as

individual victims.

13.4 Failure to recognise and effectively target hate crime and hate incidents can lead to

victimisation of individuals and vulnerable groups, as well as the destabilisation of
entire communities. While there is no specific offence of ‘hate crime’ in criminal law in
the UK, there are existing offences such as assault, harassment, and threats which,
when driven by hostility or prejudice, are considered as hate crimes. This can
determine how the offence is investigated, and under provisions within the Criminal
Justice Act 2003, a judge can impose tougher sentences on perpetrators.

13.5 The majority of recent hate crimes are public disorder related and motivated by race.
A minority (less than 10) were sexual orientation or transgender motivated.

8

https://www.cps.gov.uk/crime-info/hate-crime

Page 60



Hate Crimes in London 2018/19: Breakdown by Motivating Factor

72.1% 1.2%
Metropolitan Police 74.5% - 129% I

City of London Police 7% = 9.2%
0.6%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% T0% 80% S90% 100%

Race m Total Relgion Sexual orientation Disability m Transgender

Motivating factors in hate crime, Metropolitan Police v City of London Police9

13.6 The above Figure shows how these motivating factors in the City compare to those

recorded for hate crimes across London as a whole for 2018/19. The breakdown by
motivating factor is relatively similar, with around three-quarters in both the City and
across London motivated by race. Those recorded in the City are more likely to be
motivated by religion than in the rest of London, and less likely to be motivated by
sexual orientation, transgender or disability.

13.7 ltis recognised that hate crime is under-reported. Nationally, only 47% of hate crimes

are reported to the police. One of the objectives of this strategy is to increase
confidence in victims of hate crime to ensure that more incidents are formally
reported to the police.

13.8 Misogyny and gender-based crimes (as opposed to sexuality-based crimes) are not

considered as hate crimes. These will be managed through the SCP Violence against
Women and Girls Strategy.

Our aims and strategic intentions

13.9 The main aim for the SCP is a City of London which experiences zero hate crime. Our
longer term aims include:

eIncreasing the reporting of hate crime
el essening the impact of hate crime through supporting victims
13.10 We have agreed five objectives to deliver our hate crime objectives:

Inform - we will work to communicate to communities and those with protected
characteristics routes to report hate crime. We will communicate to those who live, work
and visit City of London that hate crime is not tolerated.

Identify - We will work across the partnership to identify and reassure victims of hate crime
and signpost towards reporting mechanisms.

9City of London Police reported crimes

44
Page 61



Prevent - We will prevent those with protected characteristics from experiencing hate
crimes by improving community resilience, promoting equality, diversity and community
cohesion, and practicing a zero-tolerance approach to hate crimes.

Protect and Support - we will provide support to minority communities and seek to

reassure anyone with protected characteristics that they are supported in City of London.

Pursue and Prosecute - we will support City of London Police in increasing successful

prosecutions of hate crime incidents.

Outcomes we want to achieve

13.11 Our strategic aims are outlined above, but our ambition for hate crime outcomes
include:

Increasing the reporting of hate crimes to the police leading to better sanctions and
detections rates.

Increased confidence and victim satisfaction in police response.

Improving victim support and reducing repeat victimisation.

Increase awareness of support services available for victims of hate crime

Increasing the variety of reporting routes available for victims and witnesses of hate
crime.

Increasing public awareness of third-party reporting centres and reporting mechanisms.
Increasing community confidence in the local police, council, and partners.

Providing more education and training to schools and colleges as well as upskilling
workforces to identify and reject hate.

Increasing community understanding and awareness of hate crime.

How will we achieve this?

Using our resources such as CCTV and Community safety patrols to support the police in
gathering evidence and prosecuting offenders.

Ensuring frontline services have a consistent practice for responding to hate crime
reports

Establishing multi-agency processes for sharing information about victims and
perpetrators of hate crime so that appropriate interventions, including potential
tenancy action against perpetrators, and support packages for victims can be provided.
Working closely with the police to consider ways to increase sanctioned detection rates
for hate crime in the borough

Exploring the use of solutions such as community resolution and restorative justicefor
hate crime victims.

Co-ordinate effective partnership working between community and victim services to
ensure support for victims is visible and reachable - develop referral pathway.

Develop communications strategy around support services to engage with and promote
to the community.

Page 62



o Review and update hate crime webpage on ColLC website with relevant, up to
dateinformation for the public to access

« Consider funding opportunities to increase awareness of support available for victims

« ensure both strategic and operational partners are able to effectively signpost and refer
victims to appropriate providers and agencies

13.12 We will ensure the best possible support for victims is available by:

» Working closely with Victim Support, Stop Hate UK, Galop, Equality Advisory Support
Service, Age UK London, Disability Rights and City of London Police.

« Ensuring our employees are safeguarded against hate crime in the workplace through
hate crime awareness training and designated hate crime champions.

« Promoting the Community Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (Community
MARAC) so that agencies supporting hate crime victims are encouraged to make
appropriate referrals to access multi-agency support.

« Working with the CJS and Victim Support to ensure victims of hate crime are adequately
supported through their involvement with the criminal justice process.

» Ensuring the Victims’ Code of Practice is effectively implemented by all partners

14. Reducing reoffending to protect our communities

Why is this a priority?

14.1 A high volume of crime is committed by offenders described as ‘prolific or priority
offenders’. Providing appropriate monitoring and supervision and working together
with offenders to tackle drug and alcohol abuse, improving their basic skills, tackling
their offending behaviour and improving the chances of them getting a job has proven
to help break the cycle of offending.

14.2 The City of London is unique in England and Wales in not having any resident

offenders who meet the criteria of being “prolific or priority offenders”, although
offenders from other areas may come to the City to commit offences. Therefore, this
strategy outlines the intentions of the partnership to manage prolific offenders should
any resident meet the criteria in future.

Our aims and strategic intentions
14.3 We will work in partnership to reduce reoffending. We will do this by:

¢ Improve the interventions we have in place against the seven pathways of

reoffending:

1.Accommodation

2.Education, training and employment
3.Health

4.Drugs and alcohol misuse

5.Finance, benefit and debt

46




6.Children and families
7.Attitudes, thinking and behaviour

Outcomes we want to achieve

eVisible drug and alcohol use and dealing reduced

eReduction in the reoffending rate for adults and juveniles

eReduce reoffending behaviour through Integrated Offender Management
eFewer first-time entrants into the criminal justice system

eMore people successfully complete treatment and do not returning to the service
for treatment within a six-month period.

How will we achieve this?

14.4 We will target persistent offenders through the rollout of a refreshed ‘Integrated
Offender Management’ (IOM) framework that emphasises a more consistent and
evidence-based approach. This cohort does not include those managed through
MAPPA (high risk) or MARAC (domestic abuse) arrangements. will focus on a cohort of
the most prolific offenders. These will be:

eNeighbourhood crime offenders with a high, very high or prolific risk of

reoffending, assessed using the Offender Group Reconviction Score (OGRS).

eMore serious neighbourhood crimes such as robbery and burglary even when they

have a medium OGRS score to reflect the level of harm caused by these offences.

14.5 Key CSP partners including the council, the police, and probation services in Stockton
all have a key role to play in the rollout of this new framework.

Inform

We will work with police and HM Prisons and Probation Service to ensure that those on the
Integrated Offender Management (IOM) cohort are aware of the expectations of
compliance placed upon them. We will communicate across services to ensure that the
holistic needs of the cohort are met; this will have the largest impact in reducing the
likelihood of their reoffending.

Identify

14.6 We will develop a cohort of the most prolific offender’s resident through analysis of
offending behaviour and need. This will be based on the following four criteria:

1.Should be subject to statutory supervision

2.Should have an OGRS score of 75 or above

3.Should be an individual who is a high crime causer in the areas of Neighbourhood
Crime

4.Persons who are already managed by MAPPA at Level 2 & 3 will not be managed
on the IOM PPO Cohort




Prevent

14.7 We will seek to prevent offenders from reoffending by providing support alongside
the seven pathways (nine if female). Address drugs, as a driver of crime, and

associated criminalities through innovative initiatives, work in partnership, locally and
nationally, to disrupt and prevent serious and organised crime to reduce the impact of

its resulting social harms on communities and residents.

14.8 These seven pathways are:

o Accommodation

+ Education, employment and training
o Health

» Drugs and alcohol

« Finance, benefit and debt

o Children and families

« Attitudes, thinking and behaviour.

14.9 There are two additional pathways for female offenders:

« Women who have experienced violence
« Women who have been involved in prostitution

Protect and Support

14.10 We will increase support across the partnership to offenders by providing access to
housing, training and employment, financial aid, debt recovery and drugs and alcohol
services.

14.11 We will support those who misuse drugs and/or alcohol to successfully complete
community/facility-based treatment

14.12 We will protect the public from prolific violent and high risk offenders through Multi-
Agency Public Protection Arrangements.

14.13 We will review opportunities to improve referral rates to drug and alcohol services.

14.14 We will continue to provide support for young people who are involved in offending,
and reduce First Time Entrants to the criminal justice system

Pursue and Prosecute

14.15 Whilst prolific offenders will be provided with support in order to change their
behaviours, we will take opportunities to bring any offender on the cohort to justice
should they continue to offend.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



Agenda Item 4c

SAFER CITY PARTNERSHIP - UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR

| am pleased to provide a update on the progress and developments made by the
Safer City Partnership (SCP) since its inception last year. Here are the key highlights
and areas of focus:

Key Highlights:
Inception and Strategy Launch:

The Safer City Partnership Board (SCP) commenced its journey with the public
launch of the "Safer City Strategy" in September 2022, laying the foundation of our
key objectives and focus areas.

Leadership Appointment: This coincided with the re-set of the SCP, evolving from
being led by elected members to officers.

| took on the interim chair responsibilities with our inaugural meeting held in
November 2022.

Gavin Steadman, Director of Public Protection, took on the deputy chair
responsibilities, as a representative of the City of London Corporation. The board
and | are grateful for this leadership and support.

Focus Areas and Development of Action Plans:

In our first meeting, the committee identified seven areas of focus as dictated by the
strategy.

Dedicated leads were allocated for each area to develop Terms of Reference (ToR),
form delivery groups, and craft action plans, ensuring a structured approach for
reporting back into the CSP.

Refined Focus: following further focus and scrutiny, the SCP Board agreed to
concentrate its efforts on three pivotal areas (Serious Violence Reduction, ASB and
Reducing Reoffending) the accomplishments of which are highlighted and detailed in
the report.

Positive Developments:

Swift Reorganisation: The Board successfully managed a reset of the SCP in a
relatively short timeframe, showcasing agility and responsiveness to evolving needs.

Progressive Steps by Delivery Groups: The delivery groups have shown
commendable progress with significant investment and involvement from statutory
partners. The work undertaken by the Serious Violence Reduction and the ASB
Delivery Group is testament to this cohesive approach. The ‘Reducing Reoffending
Group’ is beginning to make significant progress.

Page 67



Areas for Development:

Enhancing Information Sharing and Data Analysis: To foster a culture of
informed decision-making, a dedicated analyst has been recruited and the board
looks forward to their contribution towards improving the information sharing and
data analytics.

Strengthening Partnership Working: We acknowledge the uniqueness of our
partnership space and are working diligently to secure increased buy-in and foster a
collaborative environment. A positive example of this Probation Director taking on
the Chair role for the Reducing Reoffending Group.

Fostering Collaboration Across Sectors: We aim to enhance cooperation
between the statutory, private business, and voluntary sectors, working towards a
common understanding and joint problem-solving initiatives.

Funding Process Review: As part of our commitment to transparency and
consistency, we are in the process of testing and improving the newly designed
funding process, which is detailed in this inaugural report.

Conclusion:

In less than 10 months, we have achieved remarkable milestones, and there is a
genuine commitment amongst board members to build on this foundation. Our
collective aspiration is to realise the Corporations mission of making the City a safe
and pleasant place to live, work and visit and further reduce the low levels of crime in
comparison with other areas.

Umer Khan OBE
Commander — Operations & Security
City of London Police

Page 68



Agenda Item 4d

Anti-Social Behaviour Working Group Update

Aug 2023
Co-Chairs:
lan Hughes, Director City Operations, Environment Dept, City Corporation
Rob Atkin, Chief Superintendent, Uniform Policing, City of London Police
Attendees inc City of London Police, Community & Children’s Services, Environment, Police Authority

Headline Updates

Policy Documents

Draft City Corporation documents covering ASB Policy and ASB Standard Operating Procedures are
being drafted by DCCS following consultation with City Police & City Corporation departments.

Final draft of ASB Policy document has been recirculated within the ASB Working Group for final
comment before sharing with Town Clerk’s Executive Leadership Board of Chief Officers (inc
Commissioner of Police) and from there to relevant Member Committees for consultation and
adoption.

SCP STRATEGY BOARD ACTION: To review documents and support progression to ELB & Members
once finalised by the ASB Working Group

Community Safety Accreditation Scheme Powers

A report is being drafted to enable the City Corporation to request authority from the Commissioner
to adopt CSAS powers which enable a number of police-type functions to be undertaken by
accredited individuals or organisations. Such powers are intended to complement policing role rather
than replace it.

CSAS powers include the ability to require individuals to provide personal details, to enforce cycling
on the footway, to surrender alcohol & tobacco and to issue Fixed Penalty Notices for certain
offences.

Similar to ASB policy document (above), this is expected to pass through ELB before seeking
Committee approval.

SCP STRATEGY BOARD ACTION: To support adoption of CSAS powers by the City Corporation

ParkGuard Patrolling

ParkGuard already provide ASB patrolling services covering some of the City’s housing estates. As
part of a POCA funded trial, these functions were extended to the City’s streets more generally for 12
months, focusing on NTE issues but also covering crime in car parks, drug use & urination in public
spaces and street furniture damage from skateboarding.

This trial proved sufficiently successful to warrant further exploration, with positive feedback from
stakeholders. The new proposal is to extend their existing daytime patrols to cover hotspot areas for

Page 69



nuisance cycling, stakeboarding and outreach services, but also to have an additional nighttime
patrol focusing on NTE issues. Tasking would be determined in combination with existing resources
from the City Corporation and City Police.

This proposal will require additional funding of around £150k - £200k pa (see below) but if funding is
found, patrolling could be in place in time for the Christmas period.

SCP STRATEGY BOARD ACTION: To support expansion of ParkGuard role (subject to funding)

Barbican Workshop

A productive workshop was held to review current powers, policies and procedures in relation to ASB
on the Barbican Estate. Discussions & actions included:

e Comms protocols to residents to be updated

e Survey of issues to be undertaken to supplement existing data

e ParkGuard patrolling to be explored (Barbican Estate is not currently covered)
e Bylaws to be reviewed (changing them would require Govt Minister approval)

Report to Members

Further to the request from the Chair of the Police Authority Board, a paper on current data trends,
reporting & activities to address ASB has been written for Members by the Police Authority team.
Report to be finalised in early September.

Funding Bids

From the Headline Updates & the ASB Action Plan, a number of potential bids may be suitable for
SCP POCA funding allocations. In particular:

e ParkGuard patrolling, particularly in relation to the NTE

e Support to the City Police cycling team (see Operation Lewis below)

e Support for additional homeless response (see Operation Luscombe below)
e Support for more regular Operation Reframe events

e Actions & tactics arising from the Barbican Estate workshop

SCP STRATEGY BOARD ACTION: To review, prioritise and endorse bids on submission

In parallel, the Police Authority Team identified the opportunity to bid for funding from the Home
Office’s Safer Streets process. Potential uses included ParkGuard and improved CCTV in the City’s car
parks to address crime & disorder issues.

Total bid submitted (£300k) equates to 18 months funding and requires 50% City match funding.
Outcome likely to be known by end Sept / Oct.

Page 70



ASB Action Plan

The ASB Working Group finalised its Terms of Reference and reviewed & reconstituted its Action Plan

within five themes:
Reporting

ASB Policy,
Powers &
Process

Communications

The Group’s focus is on establishing a collective communication plan to link together various aspects
of communication & engagement with our community over ASB, inc website, social media, press
releases & face to face.

Reporting

A review is underway as to how incoming information is reported through the Joint Command &
Control room and quarterly community Cluster Panels, supplemented by localised engagement
activities and surgeries.

Support

A City Community Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference has been developed as a problem-
solving multi-agency monthly meeting where cases can be referred, particularly for repeat
complainants & victims.

Data Analysis

Data has been collated & shared by the City Police from June 2022 to May 2023. Headlines include
964 instances of ASB in 12 month period, down 2.6% from pervious year. Most frequent issues were:

e Inconsiderate behaviour (342)
e Begging / vagrancy (220)
e Drunken Behaviour (135)

Three most frequent locations were Bishopsgate, Paternoster Sq & Aldgate bus station, but very few
repeat victims identified (majority were recorded as crimes against the state). Vast majority of ASB
incidents were reported via either 999 or 101 telephone call.

Page 71



Additional information is now being drawn from other Corporation functions (eg Cleansing), to be
compiled and collectively assessed by Police Authority team to identify hotspot areas & further
inform tasking process.

Tasking

Multi-agency tasking groups continue to focus on hotspot issues & locations based on reported
incidents, past data & intelligence. Specific recent activities include:

e support to ASB Awareness Week (3-9 July)
e outreach services commissioned to engage rough sleepers & begging
e coordinated Police / Cleansing / Licensing activities for specific NTE issues

City Police cycling team under Operation Lewis has also had considerable success in targeting
dangerous & nuisance behaviour involving the use of pedal cycles, e-scooters & e-bikes. The first
seven weeks of the operation resulted in the following outcomes:

e 1010 hours on the street

e 2254 key messages (including crime prevention and cycle safety/enforcement)
e 22 stop/search with a 57% success rate which is double the national average

e 690 positive outcomes

e 904 Cycle offence warnings

e 94 Fixed penalty notices

e 35 Intelligence reports

o 35 e-bikes seized

e 169 hours of TFL red route patrol

A City Police proposal for Operation Luscombe (addressing issues around homelessness) is under
consideration with Community & Children’s Services covering stakeholder responsibilities,
enforcement & resourcing.

Operation Reframe multi-agency NTE activities continue to raise awareness, build cooperation and
enforce offences in hotspot locations.

Page 72



Agenda Iltem 4e

Serious Violence Subgroup

August 2023 Update

Chair Chief Supt. Rob Atkin, City of London Police

Co-Chair T/ Chief Supt. Sanjay Andersen, City of London Police

The SV sub-group’s main task is producing (by January 2024) a strategy to reduce serious violence
in the City, as required by recent national legislation.

Over the past quarter we have:

1. Helped produce a quantitative profile of local serious violence — \We worked with consultants
funded by the Home Office (Crest Advisory) to produce the basis of our ‘strategic needs
assessment’ (SNA) analysing the City’s characteristics, risk factors, and profile of serious
violence offences. The quantitative profile sets out that the City has the lowest rates of
serious violence in London despite some risk factors of concern (such as estimated rates of
alcohol misuse), that offences are concentrated in Bishopsgate, and that the commonest
types of serious violence are assaults (without weapons), perpetrated by and against men
in their early 30s. We will be adding to this analysis with medium-term trends of the
volumes, day of week, and time of day of violent offences, and qualitative information
about the City, to produce our SNA by January 2024.

2. Built a more detailed picture of what we are already doing — We have been working with
the City police, probation, health, fire and rescue, licensing authorities and teams to
establish a full picture of what action is already underway to tackle serious violence in the
City. This has helped identify priorities and gaps for our strategy.

3. Collated a longlist of options for our strategy — We have held a workshop with local public
sector and private partners and been engaging informally to gather a broad range of options
for what we can do to reduce serious violence in the City. Current themes are: improved
data analysis and sharing, a more intensive operational response particularly in the night-
time economy, improved collaboration with non-policing and private sector actors, and
more preventative initiatives for alcohol-related and sexual violence.

Over the next quarter we will be bringing together the quantitative profile, current activity, and
longlist of options into a draft SNA and draft strategy, which will be shared with Members for
information when ready. We have scheduled stakeholder engagement with some large City
employers and are working on plans for engaging a range of other local groups on the emerging
strategy — note that there are no legal requirements for a formal public consultation and we do not
intend to issue one.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Agenda Item 4f

Reducing Reoffending Subgroup

August 2023 Update

Sub- Group Meetings: | 15/06/23, 11/09/2023
Chair Stephanie Salmon — National Probation Service, Hackney & City
Co-Chair Superintendent Amanda Wolf

Progress for the subgroup has been slightly delayed this is partly attributed to the unique landscape
of the COL, alongside the impact of the summer period. In the meeting in June, it was established
that understanding the City’s make up is key to assisting the partnership in evidencing how the work
we are doing contributes to the reduction of offending/re-offending in the city.

A number of the objectives for this subgroup are targeted around the impact that statutory
offenders have on the COL and given that this cohort of individuals are not resident in the City
means wider coordination and cooperation from partners across the other London Boroughs.

It has already been established that COL IOM team have no fixed or flex offenders and as such the
work they do is within the “free” cohort. They have already established some good relationships
with local MET team and have managed to have some positive outcomes for the individuals they
have worked with. However, there are still gaps and this is where the Probation Service can
contribute to the work of the partnership.

In taking a considered approach the Chair has met independently with the Superintendent, DCl and
Policy Officer to look at the potential gaps that could be a barrier to meeting the objectives of the

group.

It is considered that work of IOM officers and work with offenders can be enhanced through
imposing conditions (where eligible) such as Licence conditions, exclusion zones, applying
monitoring such as GPS Tagging (for Domestic Abuse, Knife Crime and Acquisitive Crime) to
contribute to responding to statutory cases impacting the City.

It is considered that the given the London Probation Reducing Re-Offending Plan and focus on
accommodation, Education and Employment, Drug, Alcohol, and mental health treatment we are
already reducing re-offending by providing access to interventions which contribute to re-
offending.

As indicated above the next meeting is due to be held next week where the following will be
discussed:

e |OM data and relevant intel

e Data set/profiles of who we are looking at for our priority crimes

e Where in the city those crimes are being committed

e Who by and where are they from (MPS?)

e Out of Court Disposals

e How are reducing first time entrants to the CJS

*Reducing Reoffending Plan 2022-25 for London (publishing.service.gov.uk)

Page 75


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1105501/London-HMPPS-Reducing-Reoffending-plan.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Agenda Item 4g

I PARTNERSHIP

-b safercity

Safer City Partnership POCA funding criteria

The Safer City Partnership POCA fund guidance

The Safer City Partnership (SCP) plays a central role in reducing crime and other harms that
affect those who live, learn, work and visit the City of London. It fulfils the relevant duties of
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 for certain key public sector bodies — known as responsible
authorities - to work as a “partnership” to make places safer.

By working with statutory and non-statutory partners, the SCP works to deliver the priorities
set out in in the Safer City Partnership Strategy 2022-2025.

The responsible authorities of the SCP include the City Corporation, the Commissioner of
the City of London Police, the NHS North East London Integrated Care Board (ICB), the
London Fire Commissioner and London Probation Service.

The SCP has established three Delivery Groups. These groups will identify evidence and
intelligence-based responses to specific priority areas:

e Serious violence, and violence and against women and girls
e Anti social behaviour and neighbourhood crime
e Reducing re-offending

Funding context

Delivery of SCP’s strategy is supported by the work of its partners, and from monies
recovered under Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA). This funding provides an opportunity
to grant fund projects that can demonstrate how they will deliver to the SCP priorities and
secure the impact sought by its Delivery Groups.

Grants are assessed and administered by the City of London Corporation’s Central Grants
Unit (CGU). The CGU will make recommendations for the decision of the SCP. An important
element in the decision making of the SCP will be the support of - and engagement with -
the relevant Delivery Group.

Grants available

Grants available range from £5,000 to £50,000.

Page 77


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Services-DCCS/safer-city-partnership-strategy-2022-2025.pdf

Priority areas

Applications for funding should focus on at least one of the seven priorities of the SCP
Strategy 2022-2025:

1. Reducing Neighbourhood Crime and anti-social behaviour including in the night-
time economy
2. Tackling substance misuse linked to crime and disorder

3. Safeguarding and supporting high risk and vulnerable children and adults from
harm

4. Violence against women and girls including gendered violence

5. Serious violence

6. Hate Crime

7. Reducing reoffending
In your application, you must demonstrate the need for your initiative, the means by which

you will deliver it and how you will demonstrate impact. You should demonstrate the
relevance to - and support of — the relevant Delivery Group.

It is anticipated that the issues requiring a response, and the partners likely to be able to
lead in that response, will be identified by the Delivery Groups.

Projects must deliver within the boundaries of the City of London.

Funding will be granted on a 12-month basis. We strongly recommend that applicants seek
match-funding from other sources, so that initiatives are not solely dependent on funding
from the SCP POCA Fund.

Who can apply?

Applications can be received from

e Not-for-profit or voluntary organisations, community groups, charities and
community interest companies (CICs) registered with Companies House or the
Charity Commission

e Organisations which work to improve the safety and the reduction of crime in the
City of London (including issues which may lead to the committing of crime)

e Organisations which provide a free-of-charge and confidential service

e Organisations which provide a service regardless of whether a crime has been
reported to the police

Eligibility requirements

e A Diversity, Inclusion and Equality policy (or equivalent) which you are able to
produce and demonstrate your organisation’s commitment to

e A governing/founding document which articulates the organisation’s
charitable/community aims (including provision — such as a dissolution clause —in
the event that the organisation ceases to exist)

Page 78



e A management committee with at least three unrelated members; CICs should have
at least three unrelated Directors registered with Companies House

e Implementation of appropriate Safeguarding procedures for organisations working
with vulnerable individuals and/or children

e Organisations must have a bank account, with a minimum of two signatures (of
unrelated persons) for withdrawals, together with a constitution/articles of
association/trust deeds, or similar document

e The ability to provide annual audited accounts and/or financial records which
illustrate balance of funds and a breakdown of income and expenditure (N.B.
organisations which have been established in the last financial year will not be
excluded from the application process on the basis that they lack a set of annual
accounts).

What can’t the Safer City Partnership provide funding for?

e Consultancy fees and feasibility studies

e Core running costs alone (although funding for a portion of core running costs will be
considered in order to support the initiative seeking SCP funding)

e For profit endeavours or applications made by profit-making organisations

e General fundraising appeals

e Grant-making organisations

e Individuals

e Loan or debt repayments

e National or regional organisations, unless the grant is ring-fenced for use within the
City of London/a City of London branch exists within the organisation

e Overseas travel

e Projects of a political nature or that promote a particular political view

e Recurring funding for initiatives beyond 12 months (projects may run for longer than
12 months, but the SCP will only provide funding for a 12-month period)

e Retrospective funding

e Statutory services

Evaluation and monitoring

A vital aspect of your application will be the procedures you plan to implement to monitor
the success of your initiative over its lifetime. This may include: reaching key milestones by
agreed dates; targets for outreach with particular groups; or the delivery of a set number of
workshops within a particular timeframe.

All projects which are successful in receiving Safer City Partnership funding will be subject to
assessment or review by the SCP, and will be reported to the City of London Corporation’s
Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee.

Page 79



All funding granted must be spent in line with the proposals made in your application and
the agreement made with the SCP in relation to the funding remit. Evaluation by your
organisation must demonstrate this and will be a focus of SCP monitoring. Any improper use
of funds may require the partial or total repayment of the grant to the SCP. Any unused
funds after 12 months must be returned to the SCP.

You must inform the Safer City Partnership immediately of any significant changes in the
nature or focus of your initiative over the funding period. You must seek the permission of
the SCP before any changes are made to how grant funding can be utilised. Failure to do so
may result in the withdrawal or requested repayment of funds.

Application process

Appended

Assessment criteria

The initiative delivers to at least one of the SCP Strategy priorities

The initiative is supported by a relevant Delivery Group of the SCP

The need for the initiative is clearly demonstrated with supporting evidence
The initiative benefits the people and/or businesses of the City of London

The budget is cost-effective and all aspects of requested funding provisions are
eligible under SCP POCA Funding criteria

6. The initiative will increase community safety and/or enables crime
prevention/reduction

e wnN e

7. The initiative will have a positive and long-term impact on the City of London
8. The initiative demonstrates clear tools for evaluating and monitoring metrics for
success

Page 80



Appendix - Application process

Safer City Partnership POCA funding

Application process

1. Applications from external organisations and bodies (organisations that are not one
of the Responsible Authorities of the SCP):

NB: Please also read the funding criteria
Step 1: Expression of interest

Submit a completed Expression of interest Form to the relevant SCP Sub Group for the project
proposed.

Where the SCP - or member of the SCP Strategy Board - identifies and need that sits outside of the
subgroup coverage, it should come initially to the SCP Strategy Board.

Outcome
EOI supported: referred to CGU for application (Step 2)

EOI not supported: either no further action, or the applicant is advised to revise their EOI to
address issues/deficiencies identified

Step 2: full application
Applicant referred to CGU. CGU provides full application for completion

Application assessed by CGU with recommendations made for consideration by the Safer City
Partnership.

The CGU will have up to 8 weeks to fully assess an application and draft a recommendation report

Step 3: SCP decision making
SCP decides to approve or reject the application for funding.

Recommendations and decision making will be made utilising the SCP Strategy Board meetings.
However, this shall be a restricted agenda item in that:

I.  The decision is that of the SCP only — meaning the constituent five ‘Responsible
Authorities’. In the event of a vote being necessary to determine a decision, only those
responsible authorities have voting rights.

Il.  Where an individual or organisation outside of the Responsible Authorities is involved
in a bid, they shall recuse themselves from the decision and decision making

Page 81



SCP members shall have the right to delegate the decision making to the chair in the event that
further information or clarification is needed to progress a decision.

SCP Approved: referred to Executive Director of Community and Children’s services to approve the
dispersal of funds by the CGU

SCP Rejected: decision and rationale for rejection fed back to applicant
Step 4: Notification of outcome
CGU informs bidders of outcome.

Where supported, the CGU will seek the approval of the Executive Director of Community and
Children’s Services to disperse funding in line with approved bid.

2. Applications from Responsible Authorities of the SCP:

Step 1: Expression of interest

Submit a completed Expression of interest Form to the relevant SCP Sub Group for the project
proposed.

Where the SCP - or member of the SCP Strategy Board - identifies and need that sits outside of the
subgroup coverage, it should come initially to the SCP Strategy Board.

EOI supported: referred to SCP for decision (Step 2)

EOI not supported: either no further action, or the applicant is advised to revise their EOI to
address issues/deficiencies identified

Step 2: SCP decision making
SCP decides to approve or reject the application for funding.

Recommendations and decision making will be made utilising the SCP Strategy Board meetings.
However, this shall be a restricted agenda item in that:

I.  The decision is that of the SCP only — meaning the constituent five ‘Responsible
Authorities’. In the event of a vote being necessary to determine a decision, only those
responsible authorities have voting rights.

SCP members shall have the right to delegate the decision making to the chair in the event that
further information or clarification is needed to progress a decision.

SCP Approved: referred to Executive Director of Community and Children’s services to
approve the dispersal of funds by the CGU

SCP Rejected: decision and rationale for rejection fed back to applicant

Where supported, the CGU will seek the approval of the Executive Director of Community and
Children’s Services to disperse funding in line with approved bid.

Page 82



Safer City Partnership POCA funding

Application process

1. Applications from external organisations and bodies (organisations that are not
one of the Responsible Authorities of the SCP):

NB: Please also read the funding criteria
Step 1: Expression of interest

Submit a completed Expression of interest Form to the relevant SCP Sub Group for the project
proposed.

Where the SCP - or member of the SCP Strategy Board - identifies and need that sits outside of the
subgroup coverage, it should come initially to the SCP Strategy Board.

[Identify point of receipt]
Outcome
EOI supported: referred to CGU for application (Step 2)

EOI not supported: either no further action, or the applicant is advised to revise their EOI to
address issues/deficiencies identified

Step 2: full application
Applicant referred to CGU. CGU provides full application for completion

Application assessed by CGU with recommendations made for consideration by the Safer City
Partnership.

The CGU will have up to 8 weeks to fully assess an application and draft a recommendation report

Step 3: SCP decision making
SCP decides to approve or reject the application for funding.

Recommendations and decision making will be made utilising the SCP Strategy Board meetings.
However, this shall be a restricted agenda item in that:

I.  The decision is that of the SCP only — meaning the constituent five ‘Responsible
Authorities’. In the event of a vote being necessary to determine a decision, only
those responsible authorities have voting rights.

Il.  Where an individual or organisation outside of the Responsible Authorities is involved
in a bid, they shall recuse themselves from the decision and decision making

Page 83



SCP members shall have the right to delegate the decision making to the chair in the event that
further information or clarification is needed to progress a decision.

SCP Approved: referred to Executive Director of Community and Children’s services to approve the
dispersal of funds by the CGU

SCP Rejected: decision and rationale for rejection fed back to applicant
Step 4: Notification of outcome
CGU informs bidders of outcome.

Where supported, the CGU will seek the approval of the Executive Director of Community and
Children’s Services to disperse funding in line with approved bid.

2. Applications from Responsible Authorities of the SCP:

Step 1: Expression of interest

Submit a completed Expression of interest Form to the relevant SCP Sub Group for the project
proposed.

Where the SCP - or member of the SCP Strategy Board - identifies and need that sits outside of the
subgroup coverage, it should come initially to the SCP Strategy Board.

EOI supported: referred to SCP for decision (Step 2)

EOI not supported: either no further action, or the applicant is advised to revise their EOI to
address issues/deficiencies identified

Step 2: SCP decision making
SCP decides to approve or reject the application for funding.

Recommendations and decision making will be made utilising the SCP Strategy Board meetings.
However, this shall be a restricted agenda item in that:

I.  The decision is that of the SCP only — meaning the constituent five ‘Responsible
Authorities’. In the event of a vote being necessary to determine a decision, only
those responsible authorities have voting rights.

SCP members shall have the right to delegate the decision making to the chair in the event that
further information or clarification is needed to progress a decision.

SCP Approved: referred to Executive Director of Community and Children’s services to
approve the dispersal of funds by the CGU

SCP Rejected: decision and rationale for rejection fed back to applicant

Where supported, the CGU will seek the approval of the Executive Director of Community and
Children’s Services to disperse funding in line with approved bid.

Page 84



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Report of the Chair of the City of London Safer City Partnership
	4a Appendix 1 - Safer City Partnership Terms of Reference
	4b Appendix 2 - Safer City Partnership Strategy 2022-25
	4c Appendix 3 - Update from the Safer City Partnership Chair
	4d Appendix 4 - Anti-Social Behaviour Update
	4e Appendix 5 - Serious Violence Update
	4f Appendix 6 - Reducing Re-offending Update
	4g Appendix 7 - Funding Application Process
	7.2 FUNDING APPLICATION


